Return to: 2007064 13420

Mill Crup LLC

10900 NE 82 St #900

Bellevul, Wa. 98004

Bellevul, Wa. 98004

Bellevul, Wa. 98004

BY FCTO BATE 3.5.01 TIME 1.42 I \$ 1015 PAGES 85 BY A. Brack or A
PAULA ROBINSON F' ATHEAD COUNTY MONTANA

193325-BT

MILL CREEK

Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions

THIS DOCUMENT IS BEING RECORDED TO CORRECT THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS THAT WERE RECORDED ON FEBRUARY 7, 2007, AS DOC. NO. 2007-038-12030.

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS OF MILL CREEK A SUBDIVISION IN FLATHEAD COUNTY MONTANA

The undersigned hereby adopt the following DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS for those properties owned by the Declarant and located in Section26, Township 27 North, Range 20 West, PMM Flathead County Montana and more particularly shown on the Plat of Mill Creek on file and of record with the clerk and recorded of Flathead County, Montana. The terms of this Declaration are contained on the following Popages including this page plus the exhibits attached hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has signed this Declaration on this 28 day of 5 termber 2006.

Mill Creek Land, LLC	
By: the Sofino lits: Managing member	
Its: Managing member	
STATE OF Washington); ss County of King)	

On this <u>28</u> day of <u>Suptamou</u>, 2006, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public for the State aforesaid, personally appeared <u>Roger Sortino</u>, known to me to be the <u>marriage</u> of Mill Creek, LLC, the entity that executed the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such entity executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and year first above written.

Notary Public for the State of Washington—
Residing at Washington
My Commission expires 4-01-2010

Table of Contents

ARTICLE I DEC	CLARATION-PURPOSES	1
Section 1.1	Declaration	1
Section 1.2	Right to Expand	1
Section 1.3	Development and Use	
Section 1.4	Club House	2
ARTICLE II HO	MEOWNERS ASSOCIATION	2
Section 2.1	Purpose	2
Section 2.2	Care of Related Units	
Section 2.3	Membership	2
Section 2.4	Voting	3
Section 2.5	Member Responsibilities	3
Section 2.6	Incorporation	
Section 2.7	Powers and Duties of Mill Creek Homeowners Association	3
Section 2.8	Insurance	3
Section 2.9	General Insurance Provisions	3
Section 2.10	Physical Damage Insurance on Common Area	4
Section 2.11	Liability Insurance	
Section 2.12	Fidelity Insurance	4
Section 2.13	Provisions Common to Physical Damage Insurance, Liability Insurance, ar	ıd
	Fidelity Insurance	
Section 2.14	Personal Liability Insurance of Officers and Directors	5
Section 2.15	Worker's Compensation Insurance	
Section 2.16	Other Insurance	
Section 2.17	Insurance Obtained by Owners	
Section 2.18	Attorney-in-Fact	
ARTICLE III PI	ROTECTIVE COVENANTS	6
Section 3.1	Design Review Committee	
Section 3.2	Guidelines	
Section 3.3	Purpose and General Authority	
Section 3.4	Limitation of Liability	
Section 3.5	Land Use	
Section 3.6	Dwelling Construction.	
Section 3.7	Exterior Finishes	
Section 3.8	Condition and Reconstruction	
Section 3.9	No Temporary Structures	
Section 3.10	Outbuildings	
Section 3.11	Utilities	
Section 3.12	Antennas, Poles and Other Structures	
Section 3.13	Central Mail Delivery	
Section 3.14	House Numbers	
Section 3.15	Motorized Vehicles	
Section 3.16	Animals	11

	Section 3.17	Nuisances	12
	Section 3.18	Garbage and Refuse Disposal	12
	Section 3.19	Signs	12
	Section 3.20	Hunting and Fireworks	12
	Section 3.21	Driveways	
	Section 3.22	Fuel Tanks	13
	Section 3.23	Outdoor Lighting	13
	Section 3.24	Burning	
	Section 3.25	No Visible Outside Clotheslines	13
	Section 3.26	Parking and Auto Repair	13
	Section 3.27	Fertilizers and Pesticides	
	Section 3.28	Noise	13
	Section 3.29	Obstructions	14
	Section 3.30	Camping and Picnicking	14
	Section 3.31	Fire Clearance Measures	
	Section 3.32	Fencing	14
	Section 3.33	General Practices Prohibited	14
	Section 3.34	Rental and Leasing	14
	Section 3.35	Declaration of Unit Ownership	15
	Section 3.36	Townhouse Site Improvements	
ART	TICLE IV RO	DADWAY AND COMMON FACILITY MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT	
	Section 4.1	Roadway and Utility Easement	15
	Section 4.2	Cost of Maintenance	
	Section 4.3	Damage to Roadway	
٩R٦	TICLE V OW	NERS' OBLIGATIONS FOR MAINTENANCE	16
	Section 5.1	Owner's Responsibility for Lot	16
	Section 5.2	Owner's Negligence	16
٩R٦	TICLE VI AS	SESSMENTS	17
	Section 6.1	Creation of Lien and Personal Obligation for Assessments	17
	Section 6.2	Determination	17
	Section 6.3	Default Assessments	17
	Section 6.4	General Remedies of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association for Nonpaymer	ıt
		of Assessment	17
	Section 6.5	Assessment Lien	18
	Section 6.6	Successor's Liability for Assessment	19
	Section 6.7	Waiver of Homestead Exemption; Subordination of the Lien	19
	Section 6.8	Liens and encumbrances recorded before the date of the recording of this	
		Declaration	19
	Section 6.9	Liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments	19
	Section 6.10	The lien for all sums unpaid on a First Mortgage	
	Section 6.11	Reallocation of Assessments Secured by Extinguished Liens	19
	Section 6.12	Exempt Property	
	Section 6.13	Statement of Status of Assessments	
	Section 6.14	Failure to Assess	

ARTICLE VII PR	ROPERTY RIGHTS OF OWNERS	20
Section 7.1	Owners' Easements of Access and Enjoyment	20
Section 7.2	Emergency Access Easement	
ARTICLE VIII SE	PECIAL DECLARANT RIGHTS AND ADDITIONAL RESERVED RIC	GHTS21
Section 8.1	General Provisions	21
Section 8.2	Completion of Improvements	21
Section 8.3	Development Rights	21
Section 8.4	Sales Activities	21
Section 8.5	Easements	21
Section 8.6	Master Association	
Section 8.7	Association Directors and Officers	22
Section 8.8	Order of Exercise of Declarant's Rights	22
Section 8.9	Supplemental Provisions Regarding Declarant's Rights	22
Section 8.10	Utility Easements	22
Section 8.11	Reservation for Expansion and Construction	23
Section 8.12	Reservation of Easements, Exceptions, and Exclusions for Utilities,	
	Infrastructure, and Access	23
Section 8.13	Maintenance Easement	23
Section 8.14	Drainage Easement	23
Section 8.15	Declarant's Rights Incident to Construction	24
Section 8.16	Easements Deemed Created	24
ARTICLE IX DA	AMAGE OR DESTRUCTION	24
Section 9.1	Damage or Destruction of Common Area	24
Section 9.2	Repair and Reconstruction	24
Section 9.3	Funds for Repair and Reconstruction	25
Section 9.4	Disbursement of Funds for Repair and Reconstruction	
Section 9.5	Decision Not to Rebuild	25
Section 9.6	Damage or Destruction Affecting Lots	25
ARTICLE X CC	NDEMNATION	26
Section 10.1	Rights of Owners	26
Section 10.2	Partial Condemnation; Distribution of Award; Reconstruction	26
Section 10.3	Complete Condemnation	
ARTICLE XI EX	(PANSION AND WITHDRAWAL	27
Section 11.1	Reservation of Right to Expand	
Section 11.2	Completion of Expansion	
	Declaration of Annexation	
	Withdrawal of Property	
ARTICLE XII MO	ORTGAGEE PROTECTIONS	28
Section 12.1	First Mortgagees' Rights	28
Section 12.2	Cure of Delinquent Assessments	
Section 12.3	Title Taken by First Mortgagee	
ARTICLE XIII TE	ERMS AND ENFORCEMENT	
Section 13.1		
Section 13.2	Violations Deemed a Nuisance	28

Section 13.3	Compliance	29
	Failure to Comply	
	Who May Enforce	
	Nonexclusive Remedies	
Section 13.7		
Section 13.8	Recovery of Costs	29
	Internal Dispute Resolution	
	MENDMENT	
Section 14.1	Amendment	30
Section 14.2	Prior to Sale of Lots	30
Section 14.3	After Sale of Lots but During Period of Declarant Control	30
Section 14.4	After the Period of Declarant Control	30
Section 14.5	Declarant's Approval	31
Section 14.6	Effect of Amendments	31
ARTICLE XV MI	SCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	31
Section 15.1	Severability	31
Section 15.2	Construction	31
Section 15.3	Headings	31
Section 15.4	Limitation of Liability	31
Section 15.5	Conflicts Between Documents	31
Section 15.6	Assignment	32

TERMS OF THIS DECLARATION

ARTICLE I DECLARATION-PURPOSES

Section 1.1 Declaration

The "Declarant" for itself and its successors and assigns, hereby declares that the real property described below, and all property added to this Declaration by the Declarant, shall at all times be owned, held, used and occupied subject to the provisions contained in this Declaration and to the covenants, conditions and restrictions contained herein, which are enacted for the benefit of the properties and the owners. These covenants shall run with the land and be binding upon anyone who accepts a conveyance of the property.

That property located in Section 26, Township 27 North, Range 20 West, PMM Flathead County Montana and more particularly shown on the Plat of Mill Creek on file and of record with the clerk and recorded of Flathead County, Montana.

His property is owned by Mill Creek Land LLC, the Declarant, whose address is 10900 NE 8th Street, Suite 900, Bellevue, WA 98004.

Section 1.2 Right to Expand

The Declarant also now owns or may in the future own additional real estate in Flathead County, Montana, which is contiguous to Mill Creek or contiguous to other expansions of Mill Creek and which it may desire to incorporate into the Mill Creek Project (the "Expansion Property"), and the Declarant has reserved the right, but will not be obligated, to incorporate the Expansion Property in whole or in part in the regime established under this Declaration, all as provided in Article XI below, so that the Expansion Property, if and when developed, will be treated as an integral part of the single planned community of Mill Creek. Since the common elements shall belong to the association, the only grant needed with additional expansion is that all new common area shall be conveyed to the homeowners' association established herein and the association shall allow the use of the new and old common area by both the new and old members.

Section 1.3 Development and Use

Upon completion and prior to any expansion, Mill Creek will consist of a maximum of 113 Lots. Thirty-one lots are single-family lots, while 82 lots are for townhouse condominium units. Each Owner of any Lot or Unit on a Lot will abide by and benefit from the provisions, covenants, conditions, and restrictions contained in the Mill Creek Documents.

Section 1.4 Club House

Within the property there has been set aside an area of 1.3 acres, which will have a 7000 square-foot clubhouse, that will serve the needs of the property owners. That facility will remain in private ownership and not be considered part of the common area. But it is understood the facility shall be available to the lot owners and guests accompanied by lot owners for a monthly or usage fee as established by the private owners. Any conveyance of the facility from the Declarant will contain a provision allowing shared leased usage with the homeowners subject to payment of membership fees. The fee shall be determined in a long-term contract between the private owners and the homeowners association providing that Mill Creek Homeowners' Association shall be responsible for the collecting of membership fees of all lot owners. That fee will take into consideration the services provided, cost of the clubhouse lease payments, taxes, utilities and maintenance of the clubhouse. Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will include each lot owner's share of the cost in its annual assessments, which will be paid monthly by each lot owner. There will be no clubhouse assessment until the clubhouse is completed and opened to Mill Creek residences. The use of the clubhouse need not be exclusive to the members of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

ARTICLE II HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

Section 2.1 Purpose

Prior to the sale of lots within the Mill Creek Properties subdivision, the Declarant will cause to be formed, for the mutual benefit of itself and all subsequent property owners within the Mill Creek subdivision, a homeowners association so created for the purposes, but not limited to maintenance of all common use facilities. The enforcement of the conditions, covenants and restrictions, revising, altering, deleting, and enforcing these conditions, covenants, and restrictions, the establishment of liability insurance, determining member assessments, as required for the yearly operation and obligations of the association and entering into such agreement as are for the benefit of the association or required hereunder, including but not limited to the agreement provided herein with respect to the club house use.

Section 2.2 Care of Related Units

Any person erecting multiple units upon a lot where the same are allowed, may in preparing the appropriate declarations for such shared lot delegate the collection responsibilities for any fees due to the association of unit owners formed for that lot, to this homeowners association.

Section 2.3 Membership

Each lot owner of single home lots and each unit owner of the townhouse condominium units within the Mill Creek subdivision will become a member of the homeowners association and that members shall run concurrent with property ownership, beginning and ending with the close of property sale within the Mill Creek subdivision. Each owner of property added to the coverage of this Declaration shall also be a member. No mortgage holder or beneficiary of a deed of trust or trust indenture shall be a member unless it has acquired the interest in foreclosure.

Section 2.4 Voting

The powers, rights, duties and obligations of the Homeowners' Association are set forth in the initial bylaws which are attached and incorporated herein by this reference.

The Bylaws are to be deemed part of these covenants and binding as if the terms were incorporated herein.

Section 2.5 Member Responsibilities

Each lot owner in the Mill Creek subdivision is required by the acceptance of a deed to be thereby a member of the homeowners association, by accepting a deed thereby accepts and agrees to abide by the by-laws and rules and regulations of the homeowners association which may be adopted by the board of Directors from time to time, and agrees to pay the homeowners association such dues and assessments as its Board of Directors shall fix and determine, payable at such time as the directors shall determine

Section 2.6 Incorporation

The Homeowner's Association call for herein may, at the election of the Declarant, become incorporated. Irrespective of incorporation, the initial bylaws are attached here to as Exhibit A and herein incorporated as part of this declaration with the terms binding as if they were stated in full herein.

Section 2.7 Powers and Duties of Mill Creek Homeowners Association

The powers and duties are set forth in the initial bylaws are attached here to as Exhibit A and herein incorporated as part of this declaration with the terms binding as if they were stated in full herein.

Section 2.8 Insurance

All insurance policies relating to the Common Area will be purchased by the Board of Directors or its duly authorized agent. The Board of Directors, the Manager and Declarant will not be liable for failure to obtain any coverage required by this Article or for any loss or damage resulting from such failure if such failure is due to the unavailability of such coverage from reputable insurance companies, or if such coverage is available only at demonstrably unreasonable costs.

Section 2.9 General Insurance Provisions

All such insurance coverage obtained by the Board of Directors will be governed by the following provisions:

As long as Declarant owns any Lot and for a period of three year after the Declarant conveys its last lot, Declarant will be protected by all such policies in the same manner as any other Owner and shall be named an additional insured.

The deductible, if any, on any insurance policy purchased by the Board of Directors may be treated as a Common Expense payable from Annual Assessments or Special Assessments

(allocable to all of the Lots or to only some of the Lots, if the claims for damages arise from the negligence of particular Owners, or if the repairs benefit only particular Owners), or as an item to be paid from working capital reserves established by the Board of Directors.

Section 2.10 Physical Damage Insurance on Common Area

The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will obtain insurance for such insurable Improvements and with such coverages, limits, deductibles and other terms and conditions as the Board may determine from time to time.

Section 2.11 Liability Insurance

The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will obtain a comprehensive policy of public liability insurance and property damage insurance with such coverages and limits as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, insuring each member of the Board of Directors, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, the Manager, and the respective employees, agents, and all persons acting as agents against any liability to the public or the Owners (and their guests, invites, tenants, agents, and employees) arising in connection with the ownership, operation, maintenance, or use of the Common Area and streets and roads within Mill Creek and any other areas under the control of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. Declarant will be included in the coverage as an additional insured in Declarant's capacity as an Owner or Director. The Owners will be included as additional insureds, but only for claims and liabilities arising in connection with the ownership, existence, use or management of the Common Area.

The Board of Directors will review the coverage limits from time to time, but, generally, the Board will carry such amounts of insurance usually required by private institutional mortgage lenders on projects similar to Mill Creek, and in no event will such coverage be less than \$2,000,000.00 for all claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of one occurrence.

Section 2.12 Fidelity Insurance

Fidelity bonds or insurance coverage will be maintained by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association to protect against dishonest acts on the part of its officers, directors, trustees, and employees, and on the part of all others who handle or are responsible for handling the funds of or administered by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. In addition, if responsibility for handling funds is delegated to a Manager, such bonds or insurance coverage will be required for the Manager and its officers, employees, and agents, as applicable. Such fidelity bonds or insurance coverage will name the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as an obligee or insured and will be written in such amount as the Board may determine appropriate.

Section 2.13 Provisions Common to Physical Damage Insurance, Liability Insurance, and Fidelity Insurance

Any insurance coverage obtained by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association under the provisions of this Article above will be subject to the following provisions and limitations:

The named insured under any such policies will include Declarant, until all of the Lots in Mill Creek have been conveyed, and the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, as attorney-in-fact for the Owners, or the authorized representative of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association (including any trustee with whom the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may enter into any insurance trust agreement, or any successor trustee, each of which is sometimes referred to in this Declaration as the "Insurance Trustee"), who will have exclusive authority to negotiate losses under such policies.

Each Owner will be an insured person with respect to liability arising out of the Owner's interest in the Common Area or membership in the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

The policies will contain a waiver by the insurer of any right to claim by way of subrogation against Declarant, the Board of Directors, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, the Manager, and any Owner and their respective agents, employees, or tenants, and in the case of Owners, members of their households.

Section 2.14 Personal Liability Insurance of Officers and Directors

To the extent obtainable at reasonable cost, appropriate officers' and directors' personal liability insurance will be obtained by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association to protect the officers and directors from personal liability in relation to their duties and responsibilities in acting as such officers and directors on behalf of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

Section 2.15 Worker's Compensation Insurance

The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will obtain worker's compensation or similar insurance with respect to its employees, if any, in the amounts and forms as may now or hereafter be required by law.

Section 2.16 Other Insurance

The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may obtain insurance against such other risks, of a similar or dissimilar nature, as it will deem appropriate with respect to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association's responsibilities and duties.

Section 2.17 Insurance Obtained by Owners

Each Owner will have the right to obtain insurance for such Owner's benefit, at such Owner's expense, covering the Owner's Lot and Improvements, personal property and personal liability. However, no insurance coverage obtained by an Owner will operate to decrease the amount which the Board of Directors, on behalf of all Owners, may realize under any policy maintained by the Board or otherwise affect any insurance coverage obtained by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association or cause the diminution or termination of that coverage. Any such insurance obtained by an Owner will include a waiver of the particular insurance company's right of subrogation against Declarant, the Board of Directors, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, the Manager, and other Owners.

Section 2.18 Attorney-in-Fact

Each and every Owner hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as such Owner's true and lawful attorney-in-fact in such Owner's name, place, and stead for the purpose of dealing with the Improvements on the Common Area upon damage or destruction as provided in Article IX or a complete or partial taking as provided in Article X below. Acceptance by any grantee of a deed or other instrument of conveyance from Declarant or from any Owner will constitute appointment of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as attorney-in-fact as provided in this Article. As attorney-in-fact, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will have full and complete authorization, right, and power to make, execute and deliver any contract, assignment, deed, waiver or other instrument with respect to the interest of any Owner that may be necessary or appropriate to exercise the powers granted to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as attorney-in-fact.

ARTICLE III PROTECTIVE COVENANTS

A. The following covenants apply to all lots within Mill Creek or any expansion thereof:

Section 3.1 Design Review Committee

No building shall be permitted without prior approval by said Design Review Committee. This committee shall consist of a three-member panel serving one-year terms, which commence on January 1 of each year. Should a member resign or be removed, the replacement shall be made in the same manner as an original appointment.

The Committee shall elect a chairman and may have such other officers as it desires and advises the Board of Directors.

The Committee shall be formed for the expressed purpose of reviewing all building and landscape plans for conformance with the Architectural Design Guidelines attached hereto as Exhibit B. This committee shall, after the period of Declarant Control, be a committee of the Homeowners Association, but shall during the period of Declarant Control be solely appointed by the Declarant. Further, a member of the Declarant shall be a member of, and preside over, the original Design Review Committee. The Committee need not include any Member of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. All of the members of the Committee will be appointed, removed, and replaced by Declarant, in its sole discretion, until the expiration of the Period of Declarant Control or such earlier time as Declarant may elect to voluntarily waive this right by notice to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, and at that time the Board of Directors will succeed to Declarant's right to appoint, remove, or replace the members of the Committee.

Section 3.2 Guidelines

The Design Review Committee will be responsible for the establishment and administration of the Architectural Design Guidelines attached hereto as Exhibit B to facilitate the purposes and intent of this Declaration. The Committee may amend, repeal and augment the Architectural

Design Guidelines from time to time, in the Committee's sole discretion. The Architectural Design Guidelines will be binding on all Owners and other persons governed by this Declaration. These may include, among other things, those restrictions and limitations set forth below:

- (a) Procedures for making application to the Committee for design review approval, including the documents to be submitted and the time limits in which the Committee must act to approve or disapprove any submission.
- (b) Time limitations for the completion, within specified periods after approval, of the Improvements for which approval is required under the Architectural Design Guidelines.
- (c) Designation of the Building Site on a Lot, establishing the maximum developable area of the Lot.
- (d) Building and Roof Material and Design and colors.
- (e) Minimum and maximum square foot areas of living space that may be developed on any Lot, within the limitations set forth herein.
- (f) Landscaping regulations, with limitations and restrictions prohibiting the removal or requiring the replacement of existing trees, the use of plants indigenous to the locale, and other practices benefiting the protection of the environment, aesthetics and architectural harmony of Mill Creek.
- (g) And such other matters dealing with the architecture, landscaping and related environmental needs of the Mill Creek Subdivision and any expansion.

Section 3.3 Purpose and General Authority

No Improvement will be erected, placed, reconstructed, replaced, repaired or otherwise altered, nor will any construction, repair or reconstruction be commenced until plans for the Improvements shall have been approved by the Committee; provided, however, that Improvements that are completely inside a Building may be undertaken without such approval. There will be a charge for review of these plans as set forth in the Architectural Design Guidelines. All houses constructed upon the premises shall be constructed in keeping with the location, terrain, and environment of the premises and so as not to be unsightly. No building, fence, wall, or other structure shall be commenced, erected or maintained upon the property, nor shall any addition to, change of, or alteration therein be made until plans and specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials and location of the same shall have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Design Review Committee as to harmony of external design and location in relation to surrounding structures, topography and native vegetation. In the event said committee fails to approve or disapprove such design and location within thirty (30) days after said plans and specifications have been so submitted, approval will not be required, and this article will be deemed to have been fully complied with. Minimum

plans for review will consist of the site plan with proposed grading, floor plans, exterior elevations identifying all finish materials. Noncompliance with plans so approved by the Design Review Committee will not be allowed and the committee may take any legal action necessary to assure compliance with the approval conditions. Two sets of the submittal package shall be required for architectural review.

The Committee will review, study and either approve or reject proposed Improvements on the Property, all in compliance with this Declaration and as further set forth in the Architectural Design Guidelines and such rules and regulations as the Committee may establish from time to time to govern its proceedings. The Committee's determination shall be by majority vote. The Committee will exercise its best judgment to see that all Improvements conform and harmonize with any existing structures as to external design, quality and type of construction, seals, materials, color, location on the Building Site, height, grade and finished ground elevation, and the schemes and aesthetic considerations set forth in the Architectural Design Guidelines and the other Mill Creek Documents. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may excuse compliance with such requirements as are not necessary or appropriate in specific situations and may permit compliance with different or alternative requirements.

The actions of the Committee in the exercise of its discretion by its approval or disapproval of plans and other information submitted to it, or with respect to any other matter before it, will be conclusive and binding on all interested parties.

The Committee may avail itself of other technical and professional advice and consultants as it deems appropriate, and the Committee may delegate its plan review responsibilities, except final review and approval, to one or more of its members or to consultants retained by the Committee. Upon that delegation, the approval or disapproval of plans and specifications by such member or consultant will be equivalent to approval or disapproval by the entire Committee. All Improvements will be constructed only in accordance with approved plans.

Section 3.4 Limitation of Liability

The Committee will use its own judgment in accepting or disapproving all plans and specifications submitted to it. Neither the Committee nor any individual Committee member will be liable to any person for any official act of the Committee in connection with submitted plans and specifications, except to the extent the Committee or any individual Committee member acted with malice or harmful intent. Approval by the Committee does not necessarily assure approval by the appropriate governmental board or commission for the County of Flathead. Notwithstanding that the Committee has approved plans and specifications, neither the Committee nor any of its members will be responsible or liable to any Owner, developer or contractor with respect to any loss, liability, claim or expense which may arise by reason of such approval of the construction of the Improvements. Neither the Board, the Design Review Committee, nor any agent thereof, nor Declarant, nor any of its partners, employees, agents or consultants will be responsible in any way for any defects in any plans or specifications submitted, revised or approved in accordance with the provisions of the Mill Creek Documents, nor for any structural or other defects in any work done according to such plans and

specifications. In all events the Committee will be defended and indemnified by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association in any such suit or proceeding, which may arise by reason of the Committee's review or decision. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, however, will not be obligated to indemnify each member of the Committee to the extent any such member of the Committee is adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duty as a member of the Committee, unless and then only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit may be brought determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification for such expense as such court shall deem proper.

Section 3.5 Land Use

Lots 1 through 31 may be used only for single-family residential purposes and only for the purposes set forth in these Covenants, as permitted by the applicable ordinances of the County of Flathead, and the laws of the State of Montana and the United States, and as set forth in the Mill Creek Documents or other specific recorded covenants affecting all or any part of the Property. There shall be no commercial use on the property. Lots 32 through 113 may be used only for townhouse condominiums, and only for the purposes set forth in these Covenants, as permitted by the applicable ordinances of the County of Flathead, and the laws of the State of Montana and the United States, and as set forth in the Mill Creek Documents or other specific recorded covenants affecting all or any part of the Property. There shall be no commercial use on the property

Home office or related activities, which do not result in increased vehicular traffic, shall not be considered commercial use. At no time will said activities be allowed if noise, odor, or visual evidence of said activity is noticeable from adjacent properties or if said activity generates excessive roadway traffic due to the use of delivery vehicles, delivery service, or retail sales. A non-resident work force for said commercial activities of any size, operating on the premises is hereby expressly prohibited. The rental of a dwelling unit is not specifically considered as a commercial use, but the rental shall comply with Section 3.33, below. The Clubhouse property is excluded from this provision.

Section 3.6 Dwelling Construction

Subject to the provision in Article II, above, no house trailer, mobile home, or any other prefabricated structure designed to be hauled or moved on wheels, shall be placed, parked or used upon property for residential purposes. No old or previously used, buildings, whether intended for use in whole or part as the main residential structure or for use as a garage or other outbuilding shall be moved, or permitted upon, any of the property herein described. Each dwelling shall be fully completed externally, including siding and/or masonry, paint and roof, ground finish graded, and building debris removed within 12 months from the time construction starts on such building and shall not be occupied until such time as the above work is completed, in addition to the installation and completion of all plumbing fixtures and utilities.

Section 3.7 Exterior Finishes

All exterior material and color choices including that for siding and roofing must comply to the Architectural Design Guidelines and be approved by the Design Review Committee.

Section 3.8 Condition and Reconstruction

Each structure, once constructed on a lot, shall be kept in the same condition as at the time of its original construction, excepting only normal wear. All structures shall be preserved and of pleasing appearance with regard to maintenance of exterior finish (paint, stain, sealer, etc.). If any structure is damaged in any way, the owner shall, with due diligence, rebuild, repair and restore the structure to its appearance and condition prior to the casualty. Reconstruction shall be completed within one year of the casualty.

Section 3.9 No Temporary Structures

No temporary building, or partly finished building or structure shall be erected or placed upon this property.

Section 3.10 Outbuildings

All outbuildings on a Lot shall be constructed in keeping with the construction and architecture of the home and any other buildings located on the Lot and shall comply with the architectural guidelines. All outbuildings shall be kept and maintained in good condition, repair, and appearance.

Section 3.11 Utilities

All utilities shall be placed underground. It is expressly prohibited for Lot owners to provide utility easements for electric, water, sewer, gas, telephone, or other utility service under or through their property for the purpose of providing service to or through adjacent lands without the written consent of and appropriate compensation to the Declarant, its successors or assigns, for such grant of easement.

Section 3.12 Antennas, Poles and Other Structures

No antennas, poles, cellular telephone towers, communication towers, or other structures shall be erected unless approved by the Architectural Review Committee. Any satellite dish receiver must be 24 inches or less in diameter and shall not be visible from any road. Displaying the American flag on a short-term basis is permitted if it is hung from a pole bracket mounted on the residence or if it is suspended from a roof overhang.

Section 3.13 Central Mail Delivery

All mail delivery within Mill Creek will be delivered to a central mail facility within the Mill Creek Clubhouse. Each Lot owner will have their own private mailbox. Likewise, all newspapers shall also be delivered to the Central mail facility, and NO newspaper tubes shall be allowed anywhere within the Mill Creek development.

2007064 [3420

Section 3.14 House Numbers

Owners shall maintain house numbers at the driveway entrance. All house numbers shall be visible from the driveway entrance. Declarant will develop standard house numbering plaques or signposts, and if such standard house numbering is developed, all Lots and units shall be so numbered.

Section 3.15 Motorized Vehicles

No trucks, trail bikes, recreational vehicles, motor homes, motor coaches, snowmobiles, campers, trailer, boats or boat trailers or similar vehicles other than passenger automobiles or pickup or utility trucks with a capacity of three-quarters ton or less or any other motorized vehicles will be parked, stored or in any manner kept or placed on any portion of the Property except in an enclosed garage or screened from public view. This restriction, however, will not be deemed to prohibit commercial and construction vehicles, in the ordinary course of business, from making deliveries or otherwise providing services to the Property or for Declarant or the other Owners.

No snowmobiles or off-road vehicles will be allowed to operate on any roads or trails in the Property, except for emergency purposes or in areas specifically designated for such purposes by the Board. Motorcycles may be used on roads in the Property only for transportation to and from a dwelling and shall be operated in a quiet manner. It is specifically understood that a guest's motor coach may remain on the premises for a period not to exceed two (2) weeks.

Section 3.16 Animals

No more than two (2) dogs or two (2) cats or other small household pets, not to exceed three, may be kept, provided that they are not kept, bred, or maintained for any commercial purpose. No livestock or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot. Household pets, such as dogs, must be contained upon the Owner's Lot or on a leash at all times and such pet may not be permitted to run at large at any time. All pet enclosures must be located in the rear of the house no closer than 25 feet from any lot line, and must be attached to the house. No dog, which barks and can be heard on any frequent or continuing basis, shall be kept on any Lot. Owners shall be responsible to clean up after their pets. Pets constituting a nuisance may be ordered by the Board to be kept within the residence of the Owner or ordered expelled from Mill Creek. In addition, to help assure the protection of all properties and their occupants, the following breeds of dogs shall not be allowed within the Development at any time and shall be considered a nuisance. In addition to the breeds stated below, the Board of Directors of the Mill Creek Homeowners Association may find that other breeds are dangerous, and prohibit them. The following breeds are not allowed in Mill Creek:

(a) Pitt Bull, Akita, Rottweiler, Doberman (full sized), Easter Island, Argentinian Dogo. The above list can be amended by the Mill Creek Homeowners Association any time.

Any resident or the association may bring an action to abate the presence of the dogs prohibited. These dogs are deemed a nuisance and shall be abated. The party bring the action shall be entitled to attorney fees and costs of the action.

Section 3.17 Nuisances

No nuisance or unreasonably offensive or noxious activity, including noises (such as those from sound systems, bells, whistles or other sound devices) and activities or objects that create an offensive odor, nor any other use, activity or practice shall be permitted on or within any lot which is the source of significant annoyance or embarrassment to, or which significantly offends or disturbs, residents of Mill Creek or which materially interferes with the peaceful enjoyment or possession and proper use of any property by its residents. Such uses also include exterior lighting, which infringes on the peaceful enjoyment of the lot owner's neighbors (See 3.23 below); loud parties creating noise after 10:00pm or before 10:00 am; and barking dogs. As used herein, the term "nuisance" shall not include any activities of Declarant or its agents, contractors or designees, which are reasonably necessary to the development of and construction in Mill Creek.

Section 3.18 Garbage and Refuse Disposal

No part of this property shall be used or maintained as a dumping or storage ground for rubbish, trash, leaves, debris, garbage, old automobiles or other wastes. Owners shall arrange for weekly pick-up of garbage by only one private garbage contractor. All garbage receptacles and the areas in the vicinity of the receptacles shall be kept in clean and sanitary condition. Garbage receptacles shall not be visible from any roads. No burying or burning of trash will be allowed on any Lot. An Owner or an Owner's contractor may burn slash during construction of a dwelling, provided that the Owner obtains the prior written consent of Declarant and the Owner provides proof of insurance in an amount and with coverage and named insured's satisfactory to Declarant.

Section 3.19 Signs

No signs, billboards, banners, or advertising devises of any nature shall be erected, used or maintained on this property, except for the purpose of advertising for sale or for rent the property upon which it is erected. This covenant specifically includes political advertising and alike to the extent the same may be precluded. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may erect "private road" and private speed limit signs to discourage excessive use of the property by those who don't own lots and to discourage excessive speed.

Section 3.20 Hunting and Fireworks

No person shall be allowed to hunt any animal except rodents, within the boundaries of the above-described property. No discharge of firearms is permitted in Mill Creek. Fireworks may be limited in type, location or time, or prohibited entirely by the Homeowners Association or the Homeowners Association may conduct its own fireworks display.

Section 3.21 Driveways

Driveways shall be paved from existing roadway to the front of the garage building with either cement concrete pavement, or other suitable surface approved by the Design Review Committee.

Section 3.22 Fuel Tanks

No fuel tanks above or below the ground are allowed on any occupied Lot.

Section 3.23 Outdoor Lighting

Security lighting, if any, shall be installed in such a way as to be shielded from direct view from the roadway or other lots and shall be controlled by a timed switch or motion sensor so that such lighting is not under continual operation, but rather on demand by sensor activation or reasonable night time hours of operation. All such fixtures shall have been approved by the International Dark-Sky Association. As of the date of this Declaration, that organization web site is http://www.darksky.org/. The installation is subject to the approval of the Design Review Committee.

Section 3.24 Burning

Open fires are not permitted in Mill Creek. Outdoor barbecues are not an "open fire" within the meaning of this provision.

Section 3.25 No Visible Outside Clotheslines

No laundry or wash will be dried or hung outside any Building in a location visible to any other lot.

Section 3.26 Parking and Auto Repair

No automobiles or other vehicles will be parked in any street or upon any portion of the Property except within garages, carports, or designated parking areas. No work on automobiles or other vehicle repair will be performed in any visible or exposed portion of Mill Creek except in emergencies. Guest motor coaches, subject to the earlier provision, may be parked in driveways. No abandoned or inoperable vehicles of any kind will be stored or parked on any portion of the Property, except as provided below. "Abandoned or inoperable vehicle" is defined as any vehicle, which has not been driven under its own propulsion for a period of three weeks or longer; provided, however, this will not include vehicles parked by Owners while on vacation or residing away from Mill Creek.

Section 3.27 Fertilizers and Pesticides

Application of fertilizers or pesticides in the subdivision should be minimized to protect the water quality of the downstream residents.

Section 3.28 Noise

No exterior horns, whistles, bells or other sound devices, except security devices used exclusively to protect the security of the Property or Improvements, will be placed or used on any portion of the Property.

Section 3.29 Obstructions

There will be no obstruction of any walkways or bike paths or interference with the free use of those walkways and paths except as may be reasonably required in connection with repairs. The Owners, their families, tenants, guests and invites are granted nonexclusive easements to use the walkways and paths within the Property. That use will be subject to the Mill Creek Rules adopted by the Board from time to time.

Section 3.30 Camping and Picnicking

No camping or picnicking will be allowed within the common area of the Property except picnicking will be allowed in those areas designated for picnicking. The Board, in its discretion, may ban or permit public assemblies and rallies within the Property.

Section 3.31 Fire Clearance Measures

In construction and landscaping of houses, Owners shall create and maintain defensible space/vegetative clearance measures around structures as required by Flathead County, Montana and as indicated on the approved planned unit development for the Property, for the purpose of reducing fire danger.

Section 3.32 Fencing

Subject to the approval of the Design Review Committee before a fence is allowed, all allowed fences or walls in the rear yard which are located on a joint property line will require the approval of the adjacent Lot owner to the rear. Fence and wall height is limited to a maximum of five feet (5').

Section 3.33 General Practices Prohibited

The following practices are prohibited at Mill Creek:

- (a) Allowing construction suppliers and contractors to clean their equipment other than at a location designated for that purpose by the Committee;
- (b) Removing any rock, plant material, topsoil or similar items from any property of others;
- (c) Use of surface water for construction; or
- (d) Careless disposition of cigarettes and other flammable materials.
- (e) Minors in or around the created ponds without an adult being present.

Section 3.34 Rental and Leasing

The Owner of a Lot or Unit will have the right to rent or lease his Lot, subject to the following conditions:

- (a) For Lots in areas designated on the Plat as being for single-family residential use, all leases or rental agreements must be in writing with a minimum term of at least six (6) months. Lots in areas designated on the Plat as being for townhouse condominium use, all leases or rental agreements for a unit thereon must be in writing with a minimum term of at least one (1) month.
- (b) The lease or rental agreement shall be specifically subject to the Mill Creek Documents, and any failure of a tenant to comply with the Mill Creek Documents will be a default under the lease or rental agreement.
- (c) The Owner shall be liable for any violation of the Mill Creek Documents committed by the Owner's tenant, without prejudice to the Owner's right to collect any sums paid by the Owner on behalf of the tenant.

Section 3.35 Declaration of Unit Ownership

The developer of any townhouse condominium units shall assure compliance with the Unit Declaration act or such other actions as to allow the existence of townhouse or condominiums on the lot. Such documents shall be subject to the provisions of this Declaration and such documents adopted hereunder. The developer of any townhouse condominium units shall provide a means of assuring the exterior of the structure and the adjacent yard remain properly maintained and will delegate the collection of any fees for the same to the Mill Creek Homeowners Association.

Section 3.36 Townhouse Site Improvements

The developers of any townhouse phases are responsible for all costs associated with the construction of the townhouse units, including streets and driveways, landscaping, and all utilities extension from the property line.

ARTICLE IV ROADWAY AND COMMON FACILITY MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

Section 4.1 Roadway and Utility Easement

There exists on the plat of this subdivision certain roadways and utility easement shall be for the benefit of and appurtenant to all the subdivision and any expansions. That owner including the Declarant, their heirs, successors and assigns, shall have the perpetual and permanent right to use said roadway, and the utilities located thereon, for ingress, egress, and utility purposes, including the perpetual right to enter upon the real property over which said roadway and utilities traverse at any time as they may deem necessary to use, maintain, and repair the roadway and utilities across said easement, in common with all other parties hereto, and their successors and assigns. The Property will be subject to all easements shown on any recorded Plat and to any other easements of record or of use as of the date of recordation of this Declaration.

Section 4.2 Cost of Maintenance

Roadway Facility Management shall be the duty and responsibility of the Homeowners Association. Each Owner agrees to share equally the cost of maintaining and repairing: a) the roadway easements shown on the plat and b) the drainage facilities required by the Montana State Department of Environmental Quality. This cost shall be assessed by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

Section 4.3 Damage to Roadway

Each party hereto agrees to replace, reconstruct, or repair, at his own cost, any damage to any of the aforementioned facilities that has been caused by him, his agents or employees, as a result of construction or specific actions not within the scope of normal wear or use.

ARTICLE V OWNERS' OBLIGATIONS FOR MAINTENANCE

Section 5.1 Owner's Responsibility for Lot

Except as provided in the Mill Creek Documents or by written agreement with the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, all maintenance of a Lot and the Improvements located on it will be the sole responsibility of the Owner of the Lot. Each Owner will maintain its Lot in accordance with the community-wide standard of Mill Creek. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will, in the discretion of the Board, assume the maintenance responsibilities of such Owner if, in the opinion of the Board, the level and quality of maintenance being provided by such Owner does not satisfy such standard. Before assuming the maintenance responsibilities, the Board will notify the Owner in writing of its intention to do so, and if the Owner has not commenced and diligently pursued remedial action within 30 days after the mailing of such written notice, then the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will proceed. The expenses of the maintenance by the Board will be reimbursed to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association by the Owner within 30 days after the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association notifies the Owner of the amount due, and any sum not reimbursed within that 30 day period will bear interest at the Default Rate from the date of the expenditure until payment in full. Such charges will be a Default Assessment enforceable as provided in this Declaration.

Section 5.2 Owner's Negligence

If the need for maintenance, repair or replacement of any portion of the Common Area (including Improvements located on it), roadways or utilities arises because of the negligent or willful act or omission of an Owner or his family member, guest, invitee or tenant, then the expenses incurred by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association for the maintenance, repair or replacement will be a personal obligation of that Owner. If the Owner fails to repay the expenses incurred by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association within 30 days after the notice to the Owner of the amount owed, then those expenses will bear interest at the Default Rate from the date of the advance by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association until payment by the responsible Owner in full, and all such expenses and interest will become a Default Assessment enforceable in accordance with this Declaration.

ARTICLE VI ASSESSMENTS

Section 6.1 Creation of Lien and Personal Obligation for Assessments

Declarant, for each Lot owned within the Property, hereby covenants, and each Owner of any Lot, by accepting a deed for a Lot, is deemed to covenant to pay to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association (1) the Annual Assessments, of which will be paid monthly, imposed by the Board of Directors as necessary to fund the Maintenance Fund and to generally carry out the functions of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association (use of the club house, the needs of the Design Review Committee, reserves, insurance, taxes and maintenance); (2) Special Assessments for capital improvements and other purposes as stated in this Declaration; (3) Utility Assessments for water service and any other services provided by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association; (4) Assessments for maintenance, repair, improvement, snow plowing and other expenses for said roadway, in such amounts as the Association deems necessary and approves as assessments; and (5) Default Assessments which may be assessed against a Lot pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents or because the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association has incurred an expense on behalf of or caused by the Owner under the Mill Creek Documents.

Section 6.2 Determination

The Assessments that may be assessed, the manner of assessment and the enforcement are set forth in the Bylaw, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full herein.

Section 6.3 Default Assessments

All monetary fines, penalties, interest or other charges or fees (excluding Annual and Special Assessments) levied against an Owner pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents, or any expense of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association which is the obligation of an Owner or which is incurred by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association on behalf of the Owner pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents, and any expense (including without limitation attorneys' and legal assistants' fees) incurred by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as a result of the failure of an Owner to abide by the Mill Creek Documents, constitutes a Default Assessment, enforceable as provided in this Declaration below.

Section 6.4 General Remedies of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association for Nonpayment of Assessment

Any installment of an Annual Assessment, including monthly assessments or a Special Assessment which is not paid within 30 days after its due date, will be delinquent. In the event that an installment payment becomes delinquent, or in the event any Default Assessment is established under this Declaration, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, in its sole discretion, may take any or all of the following actions:

(a) Assess a late charge for each delinquency at uniform rates set by the Board of Directors from time to time in lieu of interest, such rate may

provide for a charge of up to the greater of 15% or an amount that is 6 percentage points per annum above the prime rate of major New York banks, as published in the Wall Street Journal edition dated 3 business days prior to the assessment.

- (b) Charge interest from the date of delinquency at the Default Rate;
- (c) Suspend the voting rights of the Owner during any period of delinquency;
- (d) Accelerate all remaining Assessment installments for the fiscal year in question so that unpaid Assessments for the remainder of the fiscal year will be due and payable at once;
- (e) Bring an action at law against any Owner personally obligated to pay the delinquent Assessment charges;
- (f) File a statement of lien with respect of the Lot and foreclose as set forth in more detail below.

For a delinquent Utility Assessment, the service in question may be suspended after giving the Owner 10 days' written notice that the service will be suspended unless the delinquent Utility Assessments are paid. The remedies provided under this Declaration will not be exclusive, and the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may enforce any other remedies to collect delinquent Assessments as may be provided by law.

Section 6.5 Assessment Lien

Any Assessment chargeable to a Lot will constitute a lien on the Lot, effective the due date of the Assessment. To evidence the lien, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may, but will not be obligated to, prepare a written lien statement with respect to the Lot, setting forth the name of the Owner, the legal description of the Lot, the name of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, and the delinquent Assessments amounts then owing. Any such statement will be duly signed and acknowledged by an officer or director of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association or by the Manager, and will be served upon the Owner of the Lot by mail to the address of the Lot or at such other address as the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may have in its records for the Owner. At least 10 days after the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association mails the statement to the Owner, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may record the statement in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Flathead County, Montana. Thirty days following the mailing of such notice to the Owner, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may proceed to foreclose the statement of lien in the same manner as provided for the foreclosure of mortgages under the statutes of the State of Montana. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will have the power to bid on a Lot at foreclosure sale and to acquire, hold, lease, mortgage and convey the Lot.

Section 6.6 Successor's Liability for Assessment

All successors to the fee simple title of a Lot, except as provided in Section 6.6, will be jointly and severally liable with the prior Owner or Owners thereof for any and all unpaid Assessments, interest, late charges, costs, expenses, and attorneys' and legal assistants' fees against such Lot without prejudice to any such successor's right to recover from any prior Owner any amounts paid by such successor. This liability of a successor will not be personal and will terminate upon termination of such successor's fee simple interest in the Lot. In addition, such successor will be entitled to rely on the statement of status of Assessments by or on behalf of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

Section 6.7 Waiver of Homestead Exemption; Subordination of the Lien

The lien of the Assessments will be superior to and prior to any homestead exemption provided now or in the future by the laws of the State of Montana, and to all other liens and encumbrances except the following:

Section 6.8 Liens and encumbrances recorded before the date of the recording of this Declaration

Section 6.9 Liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments

Liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments or charges duly imposed against the Lot by a Montana governmental or political subdivision or special taxing district, or any other liens made superior by statute; and

Section 6.10 The lien for all sums unpaid on a First Mortgage

The lien for all sums unpaid on a First Mortgage recorded before the date on which the Assessment sought to be enforced became delinquent, including any and all advances made by the First Mortgagee, even though some or all of such advances may have been made subsequent to the date of attachment of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association's lien.

With respect to this Section, any First Mortgagee who acquires title to a Lot by virtue of foreclosing the First Mortgage or by virtue of a deed or assignment in lieu of such a foreclosure, or any purchaser at a foreclosure sale of the First Mortgage, will take the Lot free of any claims for unpaid Assessments, interest, late charges, costs, expenses, and attorneys' (and legal assistants') fees against the Lot which accrue prior to the time such First Mortgagee or purchaser acquires title to the Lot. All other persons who hold a lien or encumbrance of any type not described in Sections 6.1 will be deemed to consent that the lien or encumbrance will be subordinate to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association's future liens for Assessments, interest, late charges, costs, expenses and attorneys' (and legal assistants') fees, as provided in this Article, whether or not such consent is specifically set forth in the instrument creating any such lien or encumbrance.

Section 6.11 Reallocation of Assessments Secured by Extinguished Liens

The sale or transfer of any Lot to enforce any of the liens to which the lien for Assessments is subordinate will extinguish the lien of such Assessments as to installments, which became due

prior to such sale or transfer. The amount of such extinguished lien may be reallocated and assessed to all Lots as a Common Expense at the direction of the Board of Directors. However, no such sale or transfer will relieve the purchaser or transferee of a Lot from liability for, or the Lot from the lien of, any Assessments made after the sale or transfer.

Section 6.12 Exempt Property

The following portions of the Property will be exempt from the Assessments, charges, and liens created under this Declaration:

(a) Any real property, an interest in which is owned by any special district established under Montana law;

Section 6.13 Statement of Status of Assessments

The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will furnish to an Owner or his designee or to any Mortgagee a statement setting forth the amount of unpaid Assessments then levied against the Lot in which the Owner, designee or Mortgagee has an interest. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will deliver the statement personally or by certified mail, first class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the inquiring party within 14 business days after the registered agent of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association receives the request by personal delivery or by certified mail, first class postage prepaid, return receipt requested or as otherwise required by the Act. The information contained in such statement, when signed by an officer or director of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association or the Manager, will be conclusive upon the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, the Board, and every Owner as to the person or persons to whom such statement is issued and who rely on it in good faith.

Section 6.14 Failure to Assess

The omission or failure of the Board to fix the Assessment amounts or rates or to deliver or mail to each Owner an Assessment notice will not be deemed a waiver, modification, or a release of any Owner from the obligation to pay Assessments. In such event, each Owner will continue to pay Annual or Monthly Assessments on the same basis as for the last year for which an Assessment was made until a new Assessment is made, at which time any shortfalls in collections may be assessed retroactively by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

ARTICLE VII PROPERTY RIGHTS OF OWNERS

Section 7.1 Owners' Easements of Access and Enjoyment

Every Owner has a perpetual, non-exclusive easement for access to and from his Lot and for the use and enjoyment of the Common Area, which easement is appurtenant to and will pass with the title to every Lot, subject to the provisions set forth in this Article. Any Owner may delegate, in accordance with the Mill Creek Documents, its rights of access and enjoyment described in Section 7.1 above to its tenants, employees, family, guests or invites.

Section 7.2 Emergency Access Easement

A general easement is hereby granted to all police, sheriff, fire protection, ambulance, and all other similar emergency agencies or persons to enter upon all streets and upon the Property in the proper performance of their duties.

ARTICLE VIII SPECIAL DECLARANT RIGHTS AND ADDITIONAL RESERVED RIGHTS

Section 8.1 General Provisions

Until the expiration of the Period of Declarant Control, Declarant will have the following Special Declarant Rights:

Section 8.2 Completion of Improvements

The right to complete Improvements as indicated on any Plat filed with respect to the Property, including the Expansion Property;

Section 8.3 Development Rights

The right to exercise all development rights in connection with the development of the Mill Creek Project (referred to here as "Development Rights"), including without limitation the right or combination of rights hereby reserved by Declarant, as follows:

- (a) The right to annex all or part of the Expansion Property to the Project, in accordance with the Declaration.
- (b) The right to create Lots and Common Area on the Property, including the Expansion Property.
- (c) The right to subdivide Lots and convert Lots into Common Area on any part of the Property, including the Expansion Property.
- (d) The right to withdraw real estate, whether contained within the Property initially subject to this Declaration or within the Expansion Property, from Mill Creek, as provided in in this Declaration.

Section 8.4 Sales Activities

The right to maintain sales and management offices, signs advertising the Project and model residences on the Common Area and on Lots owned by Declarant, whether contained within the Property initially subject to this Declaration, or within the Expansion Property

Section 8.5 Easements

The right to use easements through the Common Area on the Property, including the Expansion Property, for the purpose of making Improvements on the Property and the Expansion Property.

Section 8.6 Master Association

The right to make the Project subject to a master association.

Section 8.7 Association Directors and Officers

The right to appoint any officer or director of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, as provided in this Declaration or the Bylaws.

Section 8.8 Order of Exercise of Declarant's Rights

Declarant makes no representations and gives no assurances regarding the legal description or the boundaries of any phase of the Expansion Property or the order or time in which the phases of the Expansion Property may be developed or incorporated in the Project, or whether or to what extent any of the Expansion Property will be developed or incorporated in the Project. Further, the fact that Declarant may exercise one or more of Declarant's Development Rights or other Special Declarant Rights on one portion of the Property (including the Expansion Property) will not operate to require Declarant to exercise a Development Right or other Special Declarant Right with respect to on any other portion of the Property (including the Expansion Property).

Section 8.9 Supplemental Provisions Regarding Declarant's Rights

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, certain of these Special Declarant Rights are explained more fully in this Article below. Further, Declarant reserves the right to amend this Declaration and any Plat in connection with the exercise of any Development Right or any other Special Declarant Right, and Declarant also reserves the additional rights retained for the benefit of Declarant in this Article and in other provisions of this Declaration.

Section 8.10 Utility Easements

There is hereby created a general easement upon, across, over, in, and under the Property for ingress and egress and for installation, replacement, repair, and maintenance of all utilities, including but not limited to water, sewer, gas, telephone, electrical, television and a master communications system. By virtue of this easement, it will be expressly permissible and proper for the companies providing utility services to install and maintain necessary equipment on the Property and to affix and maintain utility pipes, wires circuits, conduits and other equipment under the Property. Any utility company using this general easement will use its best efforts to install and maintain the utilities provided for without disturbing the uses of the Owners, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association and Declarant; will prosecute its installation and maintenance activities as promptly and expeditiously as reasonably possible; and will restore the surface to its original condition as soon as possible after completion of its work. Should any utility company furnishing a service covered by the general easement request a specific easement by separate recordable document, either Declarant or the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will have, and are hereby given, the right and authority to grant such easement upon, across, over, or under any part or all of the Property without conflicting with the terms of this Declaration. This general easement will in no way affect, avoid, extinguish, or modify any other recorded easement on the Property.

2007064,13420

Section 8.11 Reservation for Expansion and Construction

Declarant hereby reserves for itself and its successors and assigns and for Owners in all future phases of Mill Creek a perpetual easement and right-of-way for access over, upon, and across the Property, including the Expansion Property, for construction, utilities, drainage, ingress and egress, and for use of the Common Area, including Common Area located within the Expansion Property. The location of these easements and rights-of-way may be made certain by Declarant or the Mill Creek Homeowners Association by instruments recorded in Flathead County, Montana.

Declarant further reserves the right to establish from time to time, by dedication or otherwise, utility, ingress and egress, and other easements over and across the Common Areas, and to create other reservations, exceptions, and exclusions convenient or necessary for the use and operation of any other property of Declarant.

Section 8.12 Reservation of Easements, Exceptions, and Exclusions for Utilities, Infrastructure, and Access

Declarant reserves for itself and its successors and assigns and hereby grants to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, acting through the Board of Directors, the concurrent right to establish from time to time, by declaration or otherwise, utility and other easements, permits, or licenses over the Common Area, for purposes including but not limited to streets, paths, walkways, drainage, recreation areas and parking areas, and to create other reservations, exceptions, and exclusions in the interest of the Owners and the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, in order to serve the Owners within Mill Creek as initially built and expanded. Declarant also reserves for itself and its successors and assigns and grants to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association the concurrent right to establish from time to time by an instrument recorded in Flathead County, Montana, such easements, permits or licenses over the Common Area for access by certain persons (other than Owners and Owners' families and guests) who may be permitted to use designated portions of the Common Area as contemplated under this Declaration.

Section 8.13 Maintenance Easement

An easement is hereby reserved to Declarant for itself and its successors and assigns and granted to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, and any member of the Board of Directors or Manager, and their respective officers, agents, employees and assigns, upon, across, over, in and under the Property and a right to make such use of the Property as may be necessary or appropriate to make emergency repairs or to perform the duties and functions which the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association is obligated or permitted to perform pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents, including the right to enter upon any Lot for the purpose of performing maintenance to the landscaping or the exterior of Improvements to such Lot, as required by the Mill Creek Documents.

Section 8.14 Drainage Easement

An easement is hereby reserved to Declarant for itself and its successors and assigns and granted to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, its officers, agents, employees, successors and

assigns to enter upon, across, over, in, and under any portion of the Property for the purpose of changing, correcting, or otherwise modifying the grade or drainage channels of the Property so as to improve the drainage of water. Reasonable efforts will be made to use this easement so as not to disturb the uses of the Owners, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association and Declarant, as applicable, to the extent possible; to prosecute such drainage work promptly and expeditiously; and to restore any areas affected by such work to a sightly and usable condition as soon as reasonably possible following such work. Declarant, or its officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns must inform and obtain the approval of the Board of Directors prior to undertaking such drainage work, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

Section 8.15 Declarant's Rights Incident to Construction

Declarant, for itself and its successors and assigns, hereby retains a right and easement of ingress and egress over, in, upon, under, and across the Common Area and the right to store materials thereon and to make such other use thereof as may be reasonably necessary or incident to the construction of the Improvements on the Property or other real property owned by Declarant; provided, however, that no such rights will be exercised by Declarant in such a way as to unreasonably interfere with the occupancy, use, enjoyment or access to an Owner's Lot by that Owner or his family, tenants, employees, guests, or invites.

Section 8.16 Easements Deemed Created

All conveyances of Lots hereafter made, whether by Declarant or otherwise, will be construed to grant and reserve the easements contained in this Article, even though no specific reference to such easements or to this Article appears in the instrument for such conveyance.

ARTICLE IX DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

Section 9.1 Damage or Destruction of Common Area

As soon as practical after an event causing damage to or destruction of any part of the Common Area, unless such damage or destruction is minor, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will obtain an estimate or estimates that it deems reliable and complete of the costs of repair and reconstruction of that part of the Common Area so damaged or destroyed. "Repair and reconstruction" as used in this Article will mean restoring the damaged or destroyed Improvements to substantially the same condition in which they existed prior to the damage or destruction. The reconstruction by the Mill Creek Association after destruction by casualty or otherwise of any Common Area that is accomplished in substantial compliance with "as built" plans for such Common Area will not require compliance with the provisions of this Article or the Design Guidelines.

Section 9.2 Repair and Reconstruction

As soon as practical after obtaining estimates, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will diligently pursue to completion the repair and reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Improvements. As attorney-in-fact for the Owners, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association

may take any and all necessary or appropriate action to effect repair and reconstruction, and no consent or other action by any Owner will be necessary. Assessments of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will not be abated during the period of insurance adjustments and repair and reconstruction.

Section 9.3 Funds for Repair and Reconstruction

The proceeds received by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association from any hazard insurance will be used for the purpose of repair, replacement and reconstruction. If the proceeds of the insurance are insufficient to pay the estimated or actual cost of such repair and reconstruction, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may, levy, assess and collect in advance from all Owners, a Special Assessment sufficient to provide funds to pay such estimated or actual costs of repair and reconstruction. Further levies may be made in like manner if the amounts collected prove insufficient to complete the repair and reconstruction.

Section 9.4 Disbursement of Funds for Repair and Reconstruction

The insurance proceeds held by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association and the amounts received from the Special Assessments provided for in this Declaration constitute a fund for the payment of the costs of repair and reconstruction after casualty. It will be deemed that the first money disbursed in payment for the costs of repair and reconstruction will be made from insurance proceeds, and the balance from the Special Assessments. If there is a balance remaining after payment of all costs of such repair and reconstruction, such balance will be distributed to the Owners in proportion to the contributions each Owner made as a Special Assessment to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, or, if no Special Assessments were made, then in proportionate shares on the basis of the allocation to the Owners of Common Expenses, first to the Mortgagees and then to the Owners, as their interests appear.

Section 9.5 Decision Not to Rebuild

If, during the Period of Declarant Control, Declarant, and, at all times. Owners representing at least 67% of the votes in the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association agree in writing not to repair and reconstruct damage to the Common Area and no alternative Improvements are authorized, then and in that event the Property will be restored to its natural state and maintained as an undeveloped portion of the Common Area by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association in a neat and attractive condition, and any remaining insurance proceeds will be distributed in proportionate shares on the basis of the allocation to the Owners of the Common Expenses, first to the Mortgagees and then to the Owners, as their interests appear.

Section 9.6 Damage or Destruction Affecting Lots

In the event of damage or destruction to the Improvements located on any Lot, the Owner thereof will promptly repair and restore the damaged Improvements to their condition prior to such damage or destruction. If such repair or restoration is not commenced within 180 days from the date of such damage or destruction, or if repair and reconstruction is commenced but then abandoned for a period of more than 90 days, then the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may, after notice and hearing as provided in the Bylaws, impose a fine accruing at the rate of \$100.00 per day or such other rate imposed by the Board in compliance with the Act, charged

against the Owner of the Lot until repair and reconstruction is commenced, unless the Owner can prove to the satisfaction of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association that such failure is due to circumstances beyond the Owner's control. Such fine will be a Default Assessment and lien against the Lot.

ARTICLE X CONDEMNATION

Section 10.1 Rights of Owners

Whenever all or any part of the Common Area is taken or conveyed in lieu of and under threat of condemnation by any authority having the power of condemnation or eminent domain, each Owner will be entitled to notice of the taking, but the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will act as attorney-in-fact for all Owners in the proceedings incident to the condemnation proceeding, unless otherwise prohibited by law.

Section 10.2 Partial Condemnation; Distribution of Award; Reconstruction
The award made for such taking will be payable to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as trustee for all Owners to be disbursed as follows:

If the taking involves a portion of the Common Area on which Improvements have been constructed, then, unless, within 60 days after such taking, Declarant, during the Period of Declarant Control, and, at all times, Owners representing at least 67% of the votes in the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association otherwise agree, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will restore or replace such Improvements so taken on the remaining land included in the Common Area to the extent lands are available therefore, in accordance with plans approved by the Board of Directors. If such Improvements are to be repaired or restored, the provisions regarding the disbursement of funds with respect to casualty damage or destruction that is to be repaired will apply. If the taking does not involve any Improvements on the Common Area, or if there is a decision made not to repair or restore, or if there are net funds remaining after any such restoration or replacement is completed, then such award or net funds will be distributed in proportionate shares on the basis of the allocation to the Owners of Common Expenses, first to the Mortgagees and then to the Owners, as their interests appear.

Section 10.3 Complete Condemnation

If all of Mill Creek is taken, condemned, sold, or otherwise disposed of in lieu of or in avoidance of condemnation, then the regime created by this Declaration will terminate, and the portion of the condemnation award attributable to the Common Area will be distributed as provided in Section 10.2.

ARTICLE XI EXPANSION AND WITHDRAWAL

Section 11.1 Reservation of Right to Expand

Declarant reserves the right, but will not be obligated, to expand the effect of this Declaration to include all or part of the Expansion Property. The consent of the existing Lot Owners and Mortgagees will not be required for any such expansion, and Declarant may proceed with such expansion without limitation at its sole option. Declarant will have the unilateral right to transfer to any other person this right to expand by an instrument duly recorded. Declarant will pay all taxes and other governmental assessments relating to the Expansion Property as long as Declarant is the owner of such property.

Section 11.2 Completion of Expansion

When Declarant has determined that no further property shall be added to the Project, Declarant shall notify the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association in writing. Until such notice is given, Declarant retains the right to designate additional property as Expansion Property.

Section 11.3 Declaration of Annexation

Any expansion of the Project may be accomplished by recording a Declaration of Annexation and one or more supplemental Plats in the records of the Clerk and Recorder of Flathead County, Montana, before the expiration of the Period of Declarant Control. The Declaration of Annexation will describe the real property to be expanded, submitting it to these Covenants and provide for voting rights and Assessment allocations as provided in this Declaration. Specifically, each new Lot in the annexed area will be allocated one vote and liability for the Common Expenses equal to the liability allocated to each of the other Lots, and the proportionate voting interest and allocation of Common Expenses for the other Lots will be adjusted accordingly. Such Declaration of Annexation will not require the consent of Owners, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, or the Board of Directors. Any such expansion will be effective upon the filing for record of such Declaration of Annexation, unless otherwise provided therein. The expansion may be accomplished in stages by successive supplements or in one supplemental expansion.

Upon the recordation of any such Declaration of Annexation, the definitions used in this Declaration will be expanded automatically to encompass and refer to Mill Creek as expanded. Such Declaration of Annexation may add supplemental covenants peculiar to the Expansion Property in question, or delete or modify provisions of this Declaration as it applies to the Expansion Property added. However, this Declaration may not be modified with respect to that portion of the Property already subject to this Declaration, except as provided below for amendment.

Section 11.4 Withdrawal of Property

Declarant reserves the right to withdraw from the jurisdiction of these Covenants any parcel of the Property (including the Expansion Property), provided, however, that no parcel may be withdrawn after it has been conveyed to a purchaser.

ARTICLE XII MORTGAGEE PROTECTIONS

Section 12.1 First Mortgagees' Rights

First Mortgagees, jointly or singly, may pay taxes or other charges which are in default and which may or have become a charge against any of the Common Area or Improvements thereon, and may pay overdue premiums on hazard insurance policies, or secure new hazard insurance coverage on the lapse of a policy, for the Common Area. First Mortgagees making such payments will be owed immediate reimbursement from the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

Section 12.2 Cure of Delinquent Assessments

A First Mortgagee will be entitled to cure any delinquency of the Owner of the Lot encumbered by the First Mortgagee in the payment of Assessments. In that event, the Eligible Mortgage Holder will be entitled to obtain a release from the lien imposed or perfected by reason of such delinquency.

Section 12.3 Title Taken by First Mortgagee

Any First Mortgagee who obtains title to a Lot pursuant to the remedies provided in the First Mortgage, including foreclosure of the First Mortgage, will be liable for all Assessments due and payable as of the date title to the Lot vests in the First Mortgagee under the statutes of Montana governing foreclosures. Except as provided in the Act, such First Mortgagee will not be liable for any unpaid dues and charges attributable to the Lot which were due and payable prior to the date such title vests in the First Mortgagee

ARTICLE XIII TERMS AND ENFORCEMENT

Section 13.1 Terms

These covenants are to run with the land and shall be binding on all parties and all persons claiming under them, for a period of ten (10) years from the date these covenants are recorded, after which time said covenants shall be automatically extended for successive periods of ten (10) years, unless an instrument signed by a majority of the owners has been recorded, agreeing to change said covenants in whole or in part. This Declaration shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns of the parties hereto, and all present and future owners of the above described real property.

Section 13.2 Violations Deemed a Nuisance

Every violation of this Declaration or any other of the Mill Creek Documents is deemed to be a nuisance and is subject to all the remedies provided for the abatement of the violation. In

addition, all public and private remedies allowed at law or equity against anyone in violation of these Covenants will be available.

Section 13.3 Compliance

Each Owner or other occupant of any part of the Property will comply with the provisions of the Mill Creek Documents as the same may be amended from time to time.

Section 13.4 Failure to Comply

Failure to comply with the Mill Creek Documents will be grounds for an action to recover damages or for injunctive relief to cause any such violation to be remedied, or both. Reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing as provided in the Bylaws will be given to the delinquent party prior to commencing any legal proceedings.

Section 13.5 Who May Enforce

Any action to enforce the Mill Creek Documents may be brought by Declarant, the Board, or the Manager in the name of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association on behalf of the Owners. If, after a written request from an aggrieved Owner, none of the foregoing persons or entities commences an action to enforce the Mill Creek Documents, then the aggrieved Owner may bring such an action. No member of the Board of Directors, the Declarant, the Manager or any Owner will be liable to any other Owner for the failure to enforce any of the Mill Creek Documents at any time.

Section 13.6 Nonexclusive Remedies

All the remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive.

Section 13.7 No Waiver

The failure of the Board of Directors, Declarant, the Manager, or any aggrieved Owner to enforce the Mill Creek Documents in any one or more instances will not be deemed a waiver of the right to do so for any subsequent violations or of the right to enforce any other part of the Mill Creek Documents at any future time.

Section 13.8 Recovery of Costs

If legal assistance is obtained to enforce any of the provisions of the Mill Creek Documents, or in any legal proceeding (whether or not suit is brought) for damages or for the enforcement of the Mill Creek Documents or the restraint of violations of the Mill Creek Documents, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover all costs incurred by it in such action, including reasonable attorneys' fees (and legal assistant fees) as may be incurred, or if suit is brought, as may be determined by the court.

Section 13.9 Internal Dispute Resolution

If any dispute or question arises between Members or between Members and the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association or relating to the maintenance and repair of the roadway(s), interpretation, performance or nonperformance, violation, or enforcement of the Mill Creek

Documents, such dispute or violation may be subject to a hearing and determination by the Board in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Bylaws.

ARTICLE XIV AMENDMENT

Section 14.1 Amendment

Subject to this Section, this Declaration, or any provision of it, may be terminated, extended, modified or amended, or revoked as to the whole or any portion of the Property as follows:

Section 14.2 Prior to Sale of Lots

Prior to the sale of any Lot (excluding any sale to a Successor Declarant), Declarant (including a Successor Declarant) may terminate, extend, modify, amend or revoke this Declaration as to the whole or any portion of the Property by recording in the records of Flathead County, Montana, a document signed by the Declarant stating the action taken.

Section 14.3 After Sale of Lots but During Period of Declarant Control

After the sale of a Lot (excluding a sale to a Successor Declarant) but before expiration of the Period of Declarant Control, Declarant (including Successor Declarant) may terminate, extend, modify, amend or revoke this Declaration as to the whole or any portion of the Property. A copy of the document stating the action intended to be taken by the Declarant and a notice of the Owners' rights under this Section shall be mailed to each Owner by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the address of the Owner on the records of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. Unless written objection is received by Declarant from the Owners holding 80% or more of the votes within 30 days of the mailing of the notice to the Owners, the action proposed to be taken by the Declarant shall be considered approved and shall become final. The Declarant shall then record in the records of Flathead County, Montana, a document stating the action taken, together with a certificate certifying that notice was given to the Owners as required herein and that fewer than 80% of the Owners objected to the action.

Section 14.4 After the Period of Declarant Control

After the Period of Declarant Control, this Declaration, or any provision of it, may be terminated, extended, modified or amended, or revoked as to the whole or any portion of the Property upon the written consent of Owners holding 70% or more of the votes in the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. Any document will be immediately effective upon recording in the records of Flathead County, Montana, a copy of such executed and acknowledged by the necessary number of Owners, or alternatively, upon the recording in the records of Flathead County, Montana, of a copy of the document together with a certificate signed by an officer of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association stating that the required number of consents of Owners were obtained.

Section 14.5 Declarant's Approval

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Declaration to the contrary, no termination, extension, modification or amendment of this Declaration will be effective in any event during the Period of Declarant Control unless the written approval of Declarant is first obtained.

Section 14.6 Effect of Amendments

Amendments made pursuant to this Section will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon all Owners, their families, tenants, guests, invites and employees, and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns. Joinder of the First Mortgagees shall not be required in order to effect an amendment.

ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 15.1 Severability

This Declaration, to the extent possible, will be construed or reformed so as to give validity to all of its provisions. Any provision of this Declaration found to be prohibited by law or unenforceable will be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating any other part hereof.

Section 15.2 Construction

In interpreting words in this Declaration, unless the context will otherwise provide or require, the singular will include the plural, the plural will include the singular, and the use of any gender will include all genders.

Section 15.3 Headings

The headings are included only for purposes of convenient reference, and they will not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Declaration.

Section 15.4 Limitation of Liability

Neither the Declarant, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association nor any partner, officer or member of either the Declarant the Board will be liable to any party for any action or for any failure to act with respect to any matter arising by, through or under the Mill Creek Documents if the action or failure to act was made in good faith. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will indemnify all of the officers and Board members with respect to any act taken in their official capacity to the extent provided in this Declaration and by law and in the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

Section 15.5 Conflicts Between Documents

In case of conflict between this Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws, this Declaration will control. In case of conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation will control.

Section 15.6 Assignment

Declarant may assign all or any part of the Special Declarant Rights or any of Declarant's other rights and reservations hereunder to any successor who takes title to all or part of the Property in a bulk purchase for the purpose of development and sale. Such successor will be identified, the particular rights being assigned will be specified, and, to the extent required, concomitant obligations will be expressly assumed by such successor, all in a written instrument duly recorded in the records of the Clerk and Recorder of Flathead County, Montana.

"First Mortgagee" means the holder of record of a First Mortgage.

"Improvement(s)" means all Buildings, parking areas, loading areas, fences, walls, hedges, plantings, lighting, poles, driveways, roads, ponds, lakes, trails, gates, signs, changes in any exterior color or shape, excavation and all other site work, including, without limitation, grading, road construction, utility improvements, removal of trees or plantings, and any new exterior construction or exterior improvement which may not be included in the foregoing. "Improvement(s)" does not include turf, shrub, or tree repair or replacement of a magnitude which does not change exterior colors or exterior appearances. "Improvement(s)" does include both original improvements and all later changes and improvements.

"Lot" means a parcel of land designated as a lot on any Plat of the Property or of any Expansion Property which the Declarant makes subject to this Declaration, or a condominium unit located on the Property or any Expansion Property which the Declarant makes subject to this Declaration. Each individual condominium unit within a condominium shall be considered a separate Lot. The streets, roads, and Common Areas on any Plat shall not be considered to be separate Lots.

"Manager" means such person or entity retained by the Board of Directors to perform certain functions of the Board pursuant to this Declaration or the Bylaws.

"Member" means any person or entity holding membership in the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

"Mill Creek" means the community created by this Declaration, consisting of the Property (including any Expansion Property, after annexation of it) and all of the Improvements located on the Property.

"Mill Creek Homeowners' Association" means the Mill Creek Homeowners Association, Inc., a Montana nonprofit corporation, and any successor of that entity by whatever name.

"Mill Creek Documents" means the basic documents creating and governing Mill Creek, including, but not limited to, this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, the Architectural Design Guidelines, the Mill Creek Rules and any other procedures, rules, regulations or policies adopted under such documents by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, all as may be amended from time to time.

"Mill Creek Rules" means the rules and regulations adopted by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association from time to time.

"Owner" means the owner of record (including Declarant, and including the most recent contract purchaser, but excluding all contract sellers), whether one or more persons or entities, of fee simple title to any Lot or Unit or, if the Lot or Unit is subject to one or more contracts for deed, the owner of the purchaser's interest in the most recent contract for deed, but "Owner" does not

mean or refer to any person or entity who holds such interest merely as security for the performance of a debt or other obligation, including a Mortgage, unless and until such person or entity has acquired fee simple title pursuant to foreclosure or other proceedings.

"Period of Declarant Control" means the period beginning on the date this Declaration is first recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Flathead County, Montana, and ending on the earlier of: (a) the date which is 20 years later, or (b) the date on which the Declarant has platted all of the Expansion Property and sold 90% of the Lots in each of the Plats. When Declarant has determined that no additional property shall be considered Expansion Property, Declarant shall so notify the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association in writing. The period of Declarant Control may be reinstated or extended by agreement between Declarant and the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, subject to whatever terms, conditions, and limitations the Board of Directors may impose on the subsequent exercise by Declarant of the Special Declarant Rights. After the termination of the Period of Declarant Control, Declarant, if still an Owner, will continue to have all the rights and duties ordinarily given to Members under this Declaration.

EXHIBIT A

MILL CREEK HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

Bylaws

ARTICLE I REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the Corporation required by the Montana Business Corporation Act to be maintained in the State of Montana may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office in the State of Montana may be, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Montana Business Corporation Act.

ARTICLE II ASSOCIATION STRUCTURE

Section A. After the period of Declarant Control: The members of said association shall have the right to adopt Articles of Association, ByLaws, and rules and regulations for the benefit of the Association. The Association shall elect a board of three directors to manage the Association, which board of directors shall elect a president, Vice President and Secretary-Treasurer. The Association shall have at least one annual meeting, at which directors and officers of the Association for the next year shall be elected. The annual meetings shall be on or about the second Tuesday of February of each year. Special meetings of the Association may be called upon ten days' written notice from any member of the Association. The board of directors of the Association, duly elected, shall have the authority to promulgate rules, maintain the roadway and easement(s), including the assessment of dues for the maintenance and repair of common areas, said roadway and said easement(s). A majority vote of the members of the Association shall be required to take action at a meeting of the members of the Association. A majority vote of the directors shall be required to take this action at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Association. Until the expiration of the period of Declarant Control, the Homeowners Association will have the same powers but without the requirement of the membership vote on election of directors or the power to override at the Director's determination.

The period of Declarant Control is discussed in Article III, Section D, below.

Section B. Powers and Duties of Mill Creek Homeowners Association.

B.1 Mill Creek Homeowners' Association Management Duties. Subject to the rights and obligations of Declarant as set forth in the Declaration and the Developer as stated herein and to the rights and obligations of the other Owners, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will be responsible for the administration and operation of the subdivision. The Board of Directors will exercise for the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or obligated to be taken by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association and not reserved to Declarant, the Developer or the other Members by the Declaration, this Document, the other Mill Creek Documents, or other applicable law.

- B.2 Mill Creek Homeowners' Association's Responsibility. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, subject to the rights and obligations of the Declarant, the Developer and Owners set forth in this Document and the Declaration, shall:
 - A. will be responsible for the management, maintenance and control of the Common Areas, including roadways and all Improvements on the Common Area (including furnishings and equipment related thereto), and will keep it in good, clean and attractive condition and repair consistent with the standards of Mill Creek;
 - B. shall enter into an agreement with the owners of the clubhouse, providing that Mill Creek Homeowners' Association shall be responsible for membership fees of all lot owners. That fee will take into consideration the services provided, cost of the clubhouse, including any lease payments, taxes, utilities and maintenance of the clubhouse. Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will include each lot owner's share of the cost in its annual assessments. The use of the clubhouse need not be exclusive to the members of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association;
 - C. <u>shall prohibit any minor unaccompanied by his/her parent or guardian from recreating or being in or near the created ponds and waterfalls.</u>
 - D. through its Board of Directors, may adopt, amend and repeal rules and regulations, to be known as the "Mill Creek Rules," governing, among other things and without limitation:
 - (i) The use of the Common Area; and
 - (ii) The use of private roads, if any, within Mill Creek that are not designated as Common Area.

A copy of the Mill Creek Rules in effect will be distributed to each Member of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, and any change in the Mill Creek Rules will be distributed or made available to each Member within a reasonable time following the effective date of the change.

E. through its Board of Directors provide for enforcement of the Mill Creek Rules, this Declaration, and the Bylaws of the Association. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board may suspend the voting rights of a Member after notice and hearing as provided in the Bylaws for a violation of any of the afore named documents.

2007064 13 420

- F. may employ or contract for the services of a Manager to act for the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association and the Board and the officers according to the powers and duties delegated to the Manager pursuant to the Bylaws or resolution of the Board. Neither the Board nor any officer of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will be liable for any omission or improper exercise by a Manager of any such duty, power, or function so delegated by written instrument executed by or on behalf of the Board. The Manager may be the Declarant or a person related to Declarant.
- G. may acquire, hold and dispose of personal property, and real property. The Board, acting on behalf of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, will accept any real or personal property, leasehold or other property interests within Mill Creek.
- H. will make available for inspection by Owners and Mortgagees, upon request, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances, current copies of the Mill Creek Documents, and the books, records, and financial statements of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association prepared pursuant to the Bylaws. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may charge a reasonable fee for copying such materials.
- I. establish and maintain an adequate reserve fund from Annual Assessments levied for maintenance, repair or replacement of the Common Area and Improvements located within the Common Area that must be replaced on a periodic basis and for any other facilities made available to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association that must be replaced on a periodic basis with contribution from the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.
- J. will perform all of the duties and obligations imposed on it expressly by the Mill Creek Documents, together with every other duty or obligation reasonably to be implied from the express provisions of the Mill Creek Documents or reasonably necessary to satisfy any such duty or obligation. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association may exercise any other right or privilege (i) given to it expressly by the Mill Creek Documents, (ii) reasonably to be implied from the existence of another right or privilege given expressly by the Mill Creek Documents, or (iii) reasonably necessary to effectuate any such right or privilege.
- K. through its board of directors, assess the members for the costs of operation of the Association and other needs of the Association as called for herein and more particularly stated in Article VI, below.

L. provide insurance as stated in the Declaration.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

Section A. General. There shall be two classes of Members: (1) Developer, a voting class and (2) Owners, a voting class.

Section B. Mill Creek Land LLC is the Developer, whose address is 10900 NE 8th Street, Suite 900, Bellevue, WA 98004.

Section C. Owners are each lot owner of single home lots and each unit owner of townhouse lots within the Mill Creek Subdivision. Each owner of property added to the coverage of the Declaration of Covenants shall also be a member. No mortgage holder or beneficiary of a deed of trust or trust indenture shall be a member unless it has acquired the interest in foreclosure.

The lots or units are located within that property located in Section 26, Township 27 North, Range 20 West, PMM Flathead County Montana and more particularly shown on the Plat of Mill Creek on file and of record with the clerk and recorded of Flathead County, Montana, and such other properties that may be made subject to the Declaration of Covenants filed with this document.

Section D. The Period of Declarant Control shall mean the period beginning on the date the Declaration of Covenants is first recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Flathead County, Montana, and ending on the earlier of: (a) the date which is 20 years later, or (b) the date on which the Developer has sold ninety percent (90%) of the Lots within Mill Creek (including all additional phases) and the Developer has notified the Homeowners Association in writing that Developer has determined that no additional property shall be added to Mill Creek. The Period of Declarant Control may be reinstated or extended by agreement between Developer and the Homeowners Association upon such terms and conditions as the parties may agree. During the Period of Developer Control, Developer may appoint, remove and replace from time to time any or all of the directors and officers of the Homeowners Association. The membership will not be allowed during this period of time to elect a Director. If Developer so elects, Developer may from time to time relinquish, either on a temporary or permanent basis, the right to appoint all or a portion of the directors and officers of the Homeowners Association; provided that any such relinquishment shall be expressed in writing to the Homeowners Association.

Section E. Voting. After the Period of Declarant Control, unless provided otherwise in these Bylaws, each Member of a voting class shall have one vote, which will be cast by a designated representative of each firm and in person by an individual Member.

Section F. Notice of Membership. Any person, on becoming a Member, will furnish the Secretary of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association with a photocopy or certified copy of the recorded instrument or such other evidence as may be specified by the Board under the Bylaws or the Mill Creek Rules, vesting the person with the interest required to make him a Member. At the same time, the Member will provide the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association with the single name and address to which the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will send any notices given pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents. The Member will state in such notice the voting interest in Mill Creek Homeowners' Association to which the Member believes he is entitled and the basis for that determination. In the event of any change in the facts reported in the original written notice, including any change of ownership, the Member will give a new written notice to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association containing all of the information required to be covered in the original notice. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will keep and preserve the most recent written notice received by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association with respect to each Member.

Section G. Owner's and Association's Addresses for Notices. All Owners and each Lot and each Unit will have one and the same registered mailing address to be used by the Mill Creek Homeowner's Association or other Owners for notices, demands and all other communications regarding Mill Creek Homeowners' Association matters. The Owner or Owners of a Lot or Unit will furnish the registered address to the Secretary of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association within five days after receiving title to the Lot. The registration will be in written form and signed by all of the Owners of the Lot or Unit or by such persons as are authorized by law to represent the interests of all Owners of the Lot or Unit.

If no address is registered or if all of the Owners cannot agree, then the address of the Lot or Unit will be deemed the registered address until another registered address is furnished as required under this Section.

If the address of the Lot or Unit is the registered address of the Owners, then any notice will be deemed duly given if delivered to any person occupying the Lot or Unit or sent to the Lot or Unit by any other means specified for a particular notice in any of the Mill Creek Documents, or if the Lot or Unit is unoccupied, if the notice is held and available for the Owners at the principal office of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. All notices and demands intended to be served upon the Board of Directors will be sent to the address of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association or such other address as the Board may designate from time to time by a notice delivered to all Owners in accordance with this Section.

All notices given under this Declaration will be sent by personal delivery, which will be effective upon receipt; by overnight courier service, which will be effective one business day following timely deposit with a courier service; or by regular, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, which will be effective three days after deposit in the U.S. mail.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section A. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Members shall be held at 9:00 A.M. on the first Tuesday of May in each year, beginning with the year 2007, for the purpose of electing Directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election of Directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting of the Members, or at any adjournment thereof, the board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Members as soon thereafter as conveniently may be.

Section B. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the President or by 25% of the Board of Directors.

Section C. Place of Members' Meeting. The Board of Directors may designate any place, either within or without the State of Montana, as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting called by the Board of Directors. A waiver of notice signed by all Members entitled to vote at a meeting may designate any place, either within or without the State of Montana, as the place for the holding of such meeting. If no designation is made, or if a special meeting be otherwise called, the place of meeting shall be the principal office of the Corporation in the State of Montana.

Notice of Meeting. Notice shall be given for each special meeting to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. Such notice shall be given not less than thirty nor more than sixty days before the date of the meeting in writing, unless oral notice is reasonable under the circumstances. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the Member's address as it appears on the books of the Corporation, unless a Member shall have filed with the Secretary of the Corporation a written request that notices intended for such Member be mailed to a different address, in which case the notice shall be mailed to the address designated in the request, with postage thereon prepaid. Any notice of meetings may be waived by a Member by submitting a signed waiver either before or after the meeting, or by attendance at the meeting. When a members' meeting is adjourned for 10 days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. When a meeting is adjourned for less than 10 days, it is not necessary to give any notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting or of the business to be transacted thereat other than by announcement at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken.

Section E. Voting Lists. The Officer or agent having charge of the transfer books shall make, at least ten days before each meeting of Members, a complete list of the Members entitled to vote at such meeting, or any adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, with

the address of each, which list, for a period of ten days prior to such meeting, shall be kept on file at the registered office of the Corporation and shall be subject to inspection by any Member at any time during usual business hours. Such list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting and shall be subject to the inspection of any Member during the whole time of the meeting. The original transfer book shall be prima facie evidence as to who are the Members entitled to examine such list or transfer books or to vote at any meeting of Members.

Section F. Quorum. A majority of the Members of the Corporation entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of Members. If a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Member represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter shall be the act of the Members, unless the vote of a greater number is required by the Montana Business Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws. If less than a majority of the outstanding Members are represented at a meeting, a majority of the Members so represented may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. The Members present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members to leave less than a quorum.

Section G. Proxies. At all meetings of Members, a Member may vote either in person or by proxy executed in writing by the Member or by such Member's duly authorized attorney in fact. Such proxy shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after twelve months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy shall be revocable at the pleasure of the Member executing it, except where an irrevocable proxy is permitted by statute. Any executor, administrator, guardian, trustee or other fiduciary, may give proxies. The Board of Directors may, in advance of any annual or special meeting of the Members, prescribe additional regulations concerning the manner of execution and filing of proxies and the validation of the same, which are intended to be voted at any such meeting.

Section H. Meeting of All Members. If all of the Members shall meet at any time and place, either within or without the State of Montana, and consent to the holding of a meeting at such time and place, such meeting shall be valid without call or notice, and at such meeting any corporate action may be taken.

Section I. Voting by Ballot. Voting by Members on any question or on any election may be voice unless the presiding Officer shall order or any Member shall demand that voting be by ballot.

ARTICLE V BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Section A. General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may authorize any Officer or Officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- Section B. Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors at 9:00 A.M. on the first Tuesday of May in each year, beginning with the year 2007, for the election or appointment of Officers and for the transaction of any other business. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election or appointment of Officers shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting of the Directors, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Directors as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. The Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place, either within or without the State of Montana, for the holding of additional regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.
- Section C. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors. Te person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix any place, either within or without the State of Montana, as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board of Directors called by such person or persons.
- Section D. Notice. Notice shall be given for any special meeting of the Board of Directors to each Director stating the date, time and place of the meeting. Such notice shall be given at least one day prior thereto in writing, unless oral notice is reasonable under the circumstances. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered on the earlier of ten days after deposit in the United States mail addressed to the Director's address as shown on the Corporation's records with postage thereon prepaid or upon receipt. The attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- Section E. Conduct of Meeting. All Directors, to the extent possible, shall personally attend regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors. However, any Director may participate in any regular or special meeting by any means of communication by which all Directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. A Director participating in a meeting by this means is deemed to be present in person at the meeting. The Directors may adopt such rules and regulations for the conduct of their meetings and the management of the Corporation as they may deem proper, not inconsistent with law or these Bylaws.

- Section F. Quorum. A majority of the number of the duly elected and qualified Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business; provided, that if less than a majority of such number of Directors are present at said meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.
- Section G. Manner of Acting. The act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.
- Section H. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors and any Directorship may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of such Director's predecessor in office. Any directorship to be filled by reason of any increase in the number of Directors shall be filled by election at an annual meeting or at a special meeting of Members called for that purpose.
- Section I. Removal of Directors. The entire Board of Directors or any Director may be removed either with or without cause, at any time, by a vote of the Members who were entitled to vote for the election of the Director sought to be removed, at any special meeting called for that purpose, or at the annual meeting. Except as otherwise prescribed by the Montana Business Corporation Act, a Director may be removed for cause by vote of a majority of the entire Board.
- Section J. Resignation of Director. Any Director may resign his or her office at any time, such resignation to be made in writing and to take effect immediately without acceptance.
- Section K. Presumption of Assent. A Director of the Corporation who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless the dissent of such Director shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless such Director shall file a written dissent to such action with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered or certified mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Director who voted in favor of such action.
- Section L. Action Without a Meeting. Unless prohibited by the Montana Business Corporation Act any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Directors, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Directors or all of the members of the committee of Directors, as the case may be, entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof.

ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES

- <u>Section A.</u> <u>Permanent and Temporary Committees</u>. The Board of Directors may establish such permanent and/or temporary committees as it deems necessary and proper.
- Section B. Other Committees. The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by a majority of the full Board, may designate two or more of its members to constitute such other Committee as it desires. Each committee shall exercise such powers as may be specifically delegated to it by the Board and act upon such matters as may be referred to it from time to time for study and recommendation by the Board or the President.
- Section C. Tenure and Qualifications. Each member of each Committee shall hold office until the next regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors following his or her designation and until his or her successor is designated as a member of such Committee and is elected and qualified.
- Section D. Meetings. Regular meetings of each Committee may be held without notice at such times and places as each Committee may fix from time to time by resolution. Special meetings of each Committee may be called by any member thereof upon not less than two days' notice stating the place, date and hour of the meeting, which notice may be written or oral, and if mailed, shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member of each committee at his or her address designated to the Corporation. Any member of a Committee may waive notice of any meeting and no notice of any meeting need to be given to any member thereof who attends in person. The notice of a meeting of a Committee need not state the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting.
- Section E. Quorum. A majority of the members of a Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting thereof and action of a Committee must be authorized by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present.
- Section F. Action Without a Meeting. Any action that may be taken by a Committee at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so to be taken, shall be signed before such action by all of the members of such Committee.
- Section G. Vacancies. Any vacancy in a Committee may be filled by a resolution adopted by a majority of the full Board of Directors.
- Section H. Resignations and Removal. Any member of a Committee may be removed at any time with or without cause by resolution adopted by a majority of the full Board of Directors. Any member of a Committee may resign from such Committee at any time by giving written notice to the President or Secretary of the Corporation, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

- Section I. Procedure. Each Committee shall elect a presiding officer from its members and may fix its own rules or procedures which shall not be inconsistent with these Bylaws.
- Section J. Design Review Committee. There shall be a Design Review Committee which shall have the powers as stated in the Declaration of Covenants.

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS

- Section A. Number. The Officers of the Corporation shall consist of a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Secretary and a Treasurer, and such assistant Officers as may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.
- Section B. Election And Term Of Office. The Officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors. If the election of Officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each Officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided. Election or appointment of an Officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights.
- Section C. Removal. Any Officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed.
- Section D. Resignation. Any Officer or agent may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- Section E. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- Section F. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Corporation and, subject to the general powers of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Corporation. The President shall,

when present, preside at all meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors and shall in general perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Bylaws or by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section G. Vice President(s). The Vice-President (or in the event there be more than one Vice-President, the Vice-President in the order designated, or in the absence of any designation, then in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President in the event of the President's absence, death, inability or refusal to act. When so acting, the Vice-President shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President; and in addition thereto, shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors, or as may be prescribed by the Bylaws.

Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the Members' and of the Board of Directors' meetings in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; (c) be custodian of the corporate records; (d) keep a register of the post office address of each Member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Member; (e) have general charge of the books of the Corporation; and (f) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section I. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall: (a) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation; receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws: and (b) in general perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.

Section J. Other Assistants and Action Officers. The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint any person to act as assistant to any Officer, or to perform the duties of such Officer whenever for any reason it is impracticable for such Officer to act personally, and such assistant or acting Officer so appointed by the Board of Directors shall have the power to perform all the duties of the office to which appointed to be assistant, or as to which appointed to act, except as such power may be otherwise defined or restricted by the Board of Directors.

Section K. Compensation. The compensation of the Officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors and no Officer shall be prevented from receiving such compensation by reason of the fact that such Officer is also a Director of the Corporation.

2007064/3420

ARTICLE VII WRITTEN INSTRUMENTS, LOANS AND DEPOSITS

- Section A. Written Instruments. Subject always to the specific directions of the Board of Directors, all deeds and mortgages made by the Corporation to which the Corporation shall be a party shall be executed in its name by any Officer and attested by any Officer. All other written contracts and agreements to which the Corporation shall be a party shall be executed in its name by any Officer.
- <u>Section B.</u> <u>Loans.</u> No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- Section C. Check, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation, shall be signed by such Officer or Officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.
- Section D. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.
- Section E. Directors' Contracts. No contract or other transaction between the Corporation and any other corporation shall be affected or invalidated by the fact that any one or more of the Directors of this Corporation is or are interested in, or is a Director or Officer, or are Directors or Officers of such other corporation, and any Director or Directors, individually or jointly, may be a party or parties to or may be interested in any contract or transaction of this Corporation or in which this Corporation is interested; and no contract, act or transaction of this Corporation with any person or persons, firm or association, shall be affected or invalidated by the fact that any Director or Directors of this Corporation is a party, or are parties, to, or interested in, such contract, act, or transaction, or in any way connected with such person or persons, firm or association and each and every person who may become a Director of this Corporation is hereby relieved from any liability that might otherwise exist from contracting with the Corporation for the benefit of such person or any firm or corporation in which such person may be in any way interested.

ARTICLE IX FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on the last day of December each year.

ARTICLE X CORPORATE SEAL

This Corporation shall not have a corporate seal.

ARTICLE XI WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any Member or Director of the Corporation under the provisions of the Articles Of Incorporation, Bylaws, or the Montana Business Corporation Act, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or person entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE XII ASSESSMENTS

Section A. Determination: The Board of Directors will prepare a budget before the close of each fiscal year of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association. Annual Assessments for Common Expenses will be based upon the estimated net cash flow requirements of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association to cover the functions of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

Section B. Apportionment of Annual Assessments. Each Owner will be responsible for that Owner's share of the Common Expenses, which will be divided among the Lots included in the Project under this Declaration from time to time. The division will count as one unit each for a single family lot, and each townhome lot, and will be treated as the greater of one lot or the number of units on the lot. Accordingly, at any given time, an Owner's share of Common Expenses will be determined as a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of Lots owned by the Owner, and the denominator of which is the number of single family Lots plus the greater number of units or lots which are townhouses, then platted and incorporated in the Project. The townhouse Lots will be assessed for full outside maintenance and additional landscape maintenance.

Notwithstanding the preceding, any Common Expenses or portion thereof benefiting fewer than all of the Lots or units will be assessed exclusively against the Lots or units benefited. Further, the costs of insurance may be assessed in proportion to risk, and the costs of utilities may be assessed in proportion to usage.

Section C. Collection. Annual Assessments will be collected in periodic installments as the Board may determine from time to time, but until the Board directs otherwise, they will be

payable monthly in advance on the first day of each month. The omission or failure of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association to fix the Annual Assessments for any Assessment period will not be deemed a waiver, modification, or release of the Owners from their obligation to pay the same. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will have the right, but not the obligation, to make pro rata refunds of any Annual Assessments in excess of the actual expenses incurred in any fiscal year.

Section D. Capitalization of the Association. Upon acquisition of record title to a Lot from Declarant or any seller after Declarant, each Owner will contribute to the working capital and reserves of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association an amount equal to one-fourth of the amount of the Annual Assessment determined by the Board of Directors for the Lot for the year in which the Owner acquired title. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will maintain the working capital funds in segregated accounts to meet unforeseen expenditures or to acquire additional equipment or services for the benefit of the Members. Such payments to this fund will not be considered advance payments of Annual Assessments.

Section E. Utility Assessments. The Board of Directors may set charges and fees to be paid for domestic water service and the well irrigation system, or any other services provided by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association to Owners. The charges may include monthly fees, hook-up charges, service fees, and other fees and charges relating to the provision of such services, including charges intended to fund a reserve for repairs and replacement of the irrigation system and waterfall pumping system.

Section F. Landscape Assessments. The Board shall establish from time to time the method of setting and apportioning common area landscape maintenance and capital improvements for the single Family Lots and townhouse Lots. In addition, the townhouse Lots will be assessed for additional landscaped areas that are common to the townhouse units.

Section G. Apportionment and Collection of Assessments. The Board shall establish from time to time the method of setting and apportioning Common Area Assessments. The Assessments may be set and apportioned depending on the usage of each Lot or unit; they may be set at a fixed amount for each Lot or unit regardless of use; they may be set and apportioned using other methods determined by the Board; or they may be some combination of usage charges, fixed charges, and other charges.

Section H. Special Assessments. The Board of Directors may levy in any fiscal year one or more Special Assessments, applicable to that year only, for the purpose of defraying, in whole or in part, the cost of any construction or reconstruction, repair or replacement of a described capital improvement upon the Common Area, including the necessary fixtures and personal property related thereto, or, after adopting and submitting a revised budget to the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as may be required by the Act, to make up any shortfall in the current year's budget.

- H.1 Apportionment and Collection of Special Assessments. The Board will apportion Special Assessments among the single Family Lots and townhouse Lots and collect payment according to the same guidelines as set forth above. Lots in a newly platted portion of the Expansion Property which is added to the Property shall not be subject to Special Assessments which preceded the recording of the new Plat, unless the Special Assessment is due in monthly or periodic installments, in which case the Lots in the newly platted portion shall be subject to the Special Assessment only to the extent of the installments which are not yet due at the time of the recording of the new Plat.
- <u>H.2</u> *Notice.* Notice of the amount and due dates for such Special Assessments must be sent to each Owner at least 30 days prior to the due date.
- Section I. Default Assessments. All monetary fines, penalties, interest or other charges or fees (excluding Annual and Special Assessments) levied against an Owner pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents, or any expense of the Mill Creek Homeowner's Association which is the obligation of an Owner or which is incurred by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association on behalf of the Owner pursuant to the Mill Creek Documents, and any expense (including without limitation attorneys' and legal assistants' fees) incurred by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association as a result of the failure of an Owner to abide by Mill Creek Documents, constitutes a Default Assessment, enforceable as provided in this Declaration below.
- Section J. General Remedies of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association for Nonpayment of Assessment. Any installment of an Annual Assessment or a Special Assessment which is not paid within 30 days after its due date will be delinquent. In the event that an installment of an Annual or Special Assessment becomes delinquent, or in the event any Default Assessment is established under this Declaration, the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, in its sole discretion, may take any or all of the following actions:
- J.1 Assess a late charge for each delinquency at uniform rates set by the Board of Directors from time to time in lieu of interest, such rate may provide for a charge of up to the greater of 15% or an amount that is 6 percentage points per annum above the prime rate of major New York banks, as published in the Wall Street Journal edition dated 3 business days prior to the assessment.
 - <u>J.2</u> Charge interest from the date of delinquency at the Default Rate;
 - J.3 Suspend the voting rights of the Owner during any period of delinquency;
- J.4 Accelerate all remaining Assessment installments for the fiscal year in question so that unpaid Assessments for the remainder of the fiscal year will be due and payable at once:
- J.5 Bring an action at law against any Owner personally obligated to pay the delinquent Assessment charges.

Section K. Statement of Status of Assessments. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will furnish to an Owner or his designee or to any Mortgagee a statement setting forth the amount of unpaid Assessments then levied against the Lot in which the Owner, designee or Mortgagee has an interest. The Mill Creek Homeowners' Association will deliver the statement personally or by certified mail, first class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the inquiring party within 14 business days after the registered agent of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association receives the request by personal delivery or by certified mail, first class postage prepaid, return receipt requested or as otherwise required by the Act. The information contained in such statement, when signed by an officer or director of the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association or the Manager, will be conclusive upon the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, the Board, and every Owner as to the person or persons to whom such statement is issued and who rely on it in good faith.

Section L. Failure to Assess. The omission or failure of the Board to fix the Assessment amounts or rates or to deliver or mail to each Owner an Assessment notice will not be deemed a waiver, modification, or a release of any Owner from the obligation to pay Assessments. In such event, each Owner will continue to pay Annual Assessments on the same basis as for the last year for which an Assessment was made until a new Assessment is made, at which time any shortfalls in collections may be assessed retroactively by the Mill Creek Homeowners' Association.

ARTICLE XII AMENDMENTS

After the period of Declarant control, but not until it has expired, these Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed in the same manner and by the same affirmative vote as required to amend the Declaration of Covenants to which the initial version of this document is attached. Member entitled to vote at such meeting, which notice shall state the alterations, amendments, additions, or changes which are proposed to be made in such Bylaws. Only such changes shall be made as have been specified in the notice. Any amendment must be recorded before it is affective.

The foregoing are the Bylaws of Mill Creek Homeowners' Association, duly adopted by the Board of Directors of said Corporation on September 28, 2006.

Mill Creek Homeowners' Association

Exhibit B

MILL CREEK

Design Guidelines

Table of Contents

SECTION	N 1 OBJECTIVE OF DESIGN GUIDELINES	1
SECTION		
2.1	THE BUILDING ENVELOPE	2
2.2	DWELLING SIZE, SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS	2
2.3	TOWNHOUSE CONDOMINIUM STRUCTURE SIZE	2
2.4	OUTBUILDINGS	3
2.5	NO TEMPORARY STRUCTURES	
2.6	SINGLE FAMILY LOT SETBACKS	3
2.7	NO SUBDIVISION OF LOTS	3
2.8	STRUCTURES	3
2.9	DWELLING CONSTRUCTION	
2.10	EXTERIOR FINISHES	4
2.11	GOLF COURSE IMPACT	. 4
	LANDSCAPE PLAN AND PLANT MATERIALS	
2.13	PRIVATE AREAS	. 4
2.14	ENTRANCE DRIVEWAYS	. 5
SECTION	N 3 ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES	. 5
3.1	MASSING	. 6
3.2	ROOFS	
3.3	COLORS	
3.4	REFLECTIVE FINISHES	
3.5	MATERIALS – EXTERIOR SURFACES	
3.6	BUILDING PROJECTIONS	
3.7	SKYLIGHTS/INTERIOR LIGHTING	
3.8	EXTERIOR LIGHTING	. Y
3.9	REFLECTIVE FINISHES	
3.10	MATERIALS - EXTERIOR SURFACES	
3.11	ANTENNA/SATELLITE DISHES	
3.12	WINDOWS	10
3.13	SOLAR APPLICATIONS	11
3.14	FENCES, SITE WALLS, AND HEDGES	11
3.15	GARAGES	11
	N 4 REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS	14
4.1	PRE-DESIGN MEETING	14
4.2	THE PRELIMINARY SUBMITTAL	14
4.3	NOTICE OF PRELIMINARY SUBMITTAL	13
4.4	PRELIMINARY REVIEW	
4.5	FINAL SUBMITTAL	10
4.6	FINAL SUBMITTAL APPROVAL	
4.7	CONSTRUCTION APPROVAL	17
4.8	ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION AND/OR EXTERIOR CHANGES	17
4.9	RESUBMITTAL OF DRAWINGS	17
4.10	COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION	10
4.11	WORK IN PROGRESS – OBSERVATION FOR DESIGN CONFORMANCE	10

4.12	FINAL CONSTRUCTION REVIEW	18
4.13	NON-WAIVER	19
4.14	RIGHT OF WAIVER	19
4.15	ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE	19
SECTIO	N 5 CONSTRUCTION GUIDELINES	20
5.1	PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE	
5.2	BUILDER'S BOND	20
5.3	OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT COMPLIANCE (OSHA)	
5.4	CONSTRUCTION TRAILERS, PORTABLE FIELD OFFICES, ETC	21
5.5	DEBRIS AND TRASH REMOVAL	21
5.6	WASHOUT AND CLEANING	22
5.7	SANITARY FACILITIES	22
5.8	VEHICLES AND PARKING AREAS	22
5.9	EXCAVATION MATERIALS	22
5.10	RESTORATION OR REPAIRS OF OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGE	22
5.11	MISCELLANEOUS AND GENERAL PRACTICES	23
	CONSTRUCTION ACCESS	24
5.13	DUST AND NOISE	24
	TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION SIGNAGE	
5.15	DAILY OPERATION	24

SECTION 1 OBJECTIVE OF DESIGN GUIDELINES

It is the purpose of the Design Guidelines to protect and enhance the environment of Mill Creek, and to create a development with a real sense of community.

A thoughtful determination to limit the number of home sites allows only a privileged few the pride of ownership here. For those few, each lot within Mill Creek possesses unique opportunities while being part in a larger fabric of neighboring home sites.

The Site Development and Architectural Guidelines stresses the importance of integrated design of site and residence so that each home is compatible with Mill Creek as a whole. Each residence will require careful design to compliment neighboring settings, which includes special attention to massing, color, height and solar orientation as well as landscaping. Appropriate design can create a residence compatible with this setting, while providing the owner with a comfortable, livable home to enjoy for many years. Although an effort has been made to have Mill Creek guidelines be consistent with Flathead County regulations, each Owner, through their architect, is responsible for reviewing county regulations and other applicable restrictions and make sure they are in compliance.

Design review is not intended to enforce unreasonable controls nor dictate a specific design solution, rather it is intended to achieve an architectural character appropriate to the Mill Creek community and ensure each residence is a unique reflection of its owner while fitting in to the setting and image of Mill Creek. A worthy variance from the literal translation of these guidelines will be considered objectively by the Design Review Committee. However, the Committee will maintain a consistent application of the intent of the guidelines on an equitable and uniform basis.

The guidelines are in two parts: Site Development Guidelines, Section 2, and Architectural Guidelines, Section 3. The purpose of the Design Review Committee is to evaluate the design of a proposed structure by itself and also within its environment and neighborhood settings.

SECTION 2 SITE DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES

The natural environment in Mill Creek is unique to this development. Each lot in the Mill Creek landscape has particular features of topography, slope, views, waterfalls, streams, ponds, pathways and golf course. The Committee stresses the importance of integrated design of site and residence so that each home responds to the natural characteristics of each specific lot. Given this requirement to be site-specific, it is important to realize that designs that may work on one lot most likely will not on another lot. The following site development guidelines deal with issues of siting, grading and landscaping.

2.1 THE BUILDING ENVELOPE

The Building Envelope is the portion of each lot within which all improvements must be built except for driveway locations approved by the Committee. The Building Envelope acts as a limit beyond which no construction activity, including storage of materials is allowed. A Building Envelope is based on setbacks, views, relationship to adjacent lots and to major drives.

2.2 DWELLING SIZE, SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS

No dwelling shall be permitted on any lot which violates these provisions:

- (a) Basements: Basements are not included in the total square footage stated herein, and are also not included in the description. Therefore, a single story dwelling as used herein may or may not include a basement. If it does, the square footage of the basement shall not be included in the gross square footage calculation.
- (b) Single story Dwellings shall not have less than 2,000 square feet and not more than 3,500 square feet.
- (c) Multiple story dwellings may not have less than 2,500 square feet nor more than 5,500 square feet.
- (d) No structure shall exceed two stories (excluding the portion of the basement, which is below the natural grade) in height (excluding the roof) above the natural grade without the approval of the Design Review Committee.
- (e) No structure shall exceed 35 feet above the grade at the structure's highest point.

2.3 TOWNHOUSE CONDOMINIUM STRUCTURE SIZE

No structure shall be permitted on any lot which violates these provisions:

- (a) Basements: Basements are not included in the total square footage stated herein, and are also not included in the description. Therefore a single story dwelling as used herein may or may not include a basement. If it does, the square footage of the basement shall not be included in the gross square footage calculation.
- (b) Single story structures: Each Unit within the structure having not less than 1,800 sq. ft. and not more than 2,500 sq. ft.
- (c) Two structures: Each Unit within the structure having not less than 2,000 sq. ft. and not more than 4,000 sq. ft.
- (d) No structure shall exceed two stories (excluding the portion of the basement which is below the natural grade) in height (excluding the roof) above the natural grade without the approval of the Design Review Committee.

(e) No structure shall exceed 35 feet above the grade at the structure's highest point.

2.4 OUTBUILDINGS

All outbuildings on a Lot shall be constructed in keeping with the construction and architecture of the home and any other buildings located on the Lot and shall present an exterior appearance the same as the home and any other buildings located on the Lot, including siding, roofing material and design. All outbuildings shall be kept and maintained in good condition, repair, and appearance.

All outbuildings shall be placed with views of neighboring lots taken into consideration and approved by the Design Review Committee.

2.5 NO TEMPORARY STRUCTURES

No temporary building or partly finished building or structure shall be erected or placed upon this property.

2.6 SINGLE FAMILY LOT SETBACKS

There shall be no buildings of any kind within 25 feet of the front and rear lot lines and 10 feet from the side property lines. Setbacks for outbuildings or appurtenant structures shall be 10 feet minimum from rear and 10 side property lines, however, in no event will outbuildings or appurtenant structures be allowed in front of (toward the street) the main residential structure.

2.7 NO SUBDIVISION OF LOTS

No lot shall be further subdivided in any manner. A change in boundary lines between adjacent owners shall not be considered subdivision.

2.8 STRUCTURES

All houses constructed upon the premises shall be constructed in keeping with the location, terrain, and environment of the premises and so as not to be unsightly. No home, outbuilding, fence, wall, or other structure shall be commenced, erected or maintained upon the property, nor shall any addition to, change of, or alternation therein be made until plans and specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials and location of the same shall have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Design Review Committee as to harmony of external design and location in relation to surrounding structures. In the event said committee fails to approve or disapprove such design and location within thirty (30) days after said plans and specifications have been so submitted, approval will not be required, and this article will be deemed to have been fully complied with. Minimum plans for review will consist of the site plan with proposed grading, floor plans, exterior elevations identifying all finish materials. Noncompliance with plans so approved by the Design Review Committee will not be allowed and the committee may take any legal action necessary to assure compliance with the approval conditions. Two sets of the submittal package shall be required for architectural review.

2.9 DWELLING CONSTRUCTION

No house trailer, mobile home, or any other prefabricated structured designed to be hauled or moved on wheels, shall be placed, parked or used upon property for residential purposes. No old or previously used, buildings, whether intended for use in whole or part as the main residential structure or for use as a garage or other outbuilding shall be moved, or permitted upon, any of the property herein described. Each dwelling shall be fully completed externally, including siding and/or masonry, paint and roof, ground finish graded, and building debris removed within 12 months from the time construction starts on such building and shall not be occupied until such time as the above work is completed, in addition to the installation and completion of all plumbing fixtures and utilities.

2.10 EXTERIOR FINISHES

All exterior stain colors and roof materials must be from the approved list (see Appendix "A"). Sheet metal roofing is prohibited. All exterior material and color choices must be approved by the Architectural Review Committee.

2.11 GOLF COURSE IMPACT

As with all golf frontage lots, there is an inherent risk that golf balls and the play of golf may impact a lot or residence. The Committee strongly recommends that, during the site planning of a lot, detailed consideration be given to the possibility of errant golf balls, particularly with the orientation of windows or other breakable surfaces of the residence. Netting, screens, excessive landscaping, fences or large blank walls will not be allowed. Evaluation of the proper siting, orientation, massing and setbacks should provide for maximum golf or view orientation with minimal adverse impact from the play of golf. Design consideration should also be given to the noise generated by golfers, golf carts and golf maintenance vehicles.

2.12 LANDSCAPE PLAN AND PLANT MATERIALS

All areas that are not paved or graveled shall be revegetated with appropriate plant materials. Care should be taken to choose plant materials, whether native or not, that are suited to the microclimatic conditions in sunlight, soil, and moisture conditions in the locations where they will be placed.

Trees within each lot shall be selected from the Approved Tree list in Appendix "B". Landscape plans must be submitted at least 90 days prior to completion of construction of the residence to the Design Review Committee (see Section 4).

2.13 PRIVATE AREAS

Within private areas, plantings immediately adjacent to the residence are not restricted and may include ornamental plants that are not native to the local area.

The Private Area is that part of the Building Envelope which is not visible from neighboring property because it is hidden behind walls or structures. The Private Area is the least restrictive in terms of what plants, shrubs can be planted therein. These include those trees listed in the Approved Tree list (Appendix "A"). Owners can construct a swimming pool in private areas. The design must incorporate necessary safety standards, setbacks, and visibility from neighboring lots, and be approved by the Design Review Committee.

2.14 ENTRANCE DRIVEWAYS

Single-family lots' entrance driveways should be located so as to minimize their visual impact. Only one driveway entrance off of the street will be permitted for each lot. All driveways will be of brushed concrete. Any proposed upgrade to brushed concrete will have to be approved by the Design Review Committee.

Townhouse condominium units' driveways will be of brushed concrete with a minimum of 30 feet in length. Any proposed upgrade to brushed concrete will have to be approved by the Design Review Committee. All driveways within each townhouse phase will be the same materials.

SECTION 3 ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES

These guidelines do no intend to dictate architectural style of design within Mill Creek, although all designs must be of a character appropriate to the environment and climatic conditions. The Committee encourages architecture that uses natural materials in keeping with their physical nature and structural capabilities, construction types that have shown permanence and durability, and architectural integrity exemplified by structures of nearby Glacier National Park. There are many examples of similar architecture within the Flathead Valley region that are appropriate for setting the tone for the character of Mill Creek. These examples reflect the early settlement of the Valley and the settlers' efforts to shelter against harsh winters, while at the same time, open up to mild spring, summer and fall climate. The architectural character of the region is primarily influenced by Forest Service lodging, farm homesteads and indigenous building materials—wood, heavy timber and stone. Designs that deviate broadly from this contextual vernacular are discouraged, e.g., eclectic, post-modern, Mediterranean, or any other period styles that might be suitable in other contexts.

The design character should create a residence that blends with the Mill Creek environment instead of standing out against it. The design character of a residence should be considered uniformly from all sides, not just the front or rear elevations, and all elevations should maintain the same visual integrity, cohesiveness and design detail. Particular attention should be given to the transition from one residence to another. Transition refers to aesthetic aspects as well as to the relationship of the elevation of the respective floor levels and the comparative overall massing of the structures.

The predominant idea of the Master Plan for Mill Creek is building within a preserved and continuous fabric of architecture. Continuity of landscape and the relative subordination of

buildings is key to attainment of the distinctive character of Mill Creek. Building forms, materials and colors must blend with and compliment rather than compete with the natural landscape. Emphasis on natural materials and muted colors is essential. In order to create an intimate residential scale, long, unbroken walls and roofs should be avoided, and vertical and horizontal offsets need to be included. To further reinforce this concern for scale, architectural forms shall be softened by the inclusion of chimneys, balconies, bay windows, appropriate entrance treatments, and other such devices.

It is usually more effective visually and economically to have fewer, but larger offsets rather than a series of small jogs. A two-foot jog is barely noticeable; four-feet is better; six-to twelve-feet cast a significant shadow and have a definite visual impact. Horizontal offsets can also contribute to added privacy and wind protection of outdoor spaces, reducing the need for elements such as fences and wall extensions.

The articulation of massing can be heightened by projections such as decks. However, the deck must be an integral part of the building design, avoiding the "tacked-on" look.

The Committee strongly recommends that sloping roofs be designed as sheltering and shading elements, normally with broad overhangs and strong shadow lines. No thin edges or thin fascias. Sloped roof materials should be from approved list. Roof surfaces must be non-reflective, and, in the opinion of the Committee, not visually objectionable from neighboring properties and roads.

The composition of roof forms should be carefully considered. No continuous ridge lines should exceed 35 feet. Changing ridge direction, offsets or major roof projections should be used to break ridge lines. To avoid a thin, veneer look, two-inch by 2 x 10 inch nominal wood minimum dimension fascia boards are required. Normal two-inch roof rafters should not be exposed.

The placement of the various pipes and vents that penetrate the roof should be considered. Combine them in the attic space and project through roof in a common enclosed stack when possible. Where practical, place stacks on the roof away from the side of greatest visibility. All roof vents are to be colored to match the dominant roofing material.

3.1 MASSING

Scale and proportion can be deceiving. Small structures can at times appear large and dominating against the vegetation and landforms. Therefore, proper massing will reduce the scale of a large structure and create building texture that will help to blend the residence with its environment.

Unless otherwise specifically approved by the Committee, each residence shall be composed of at least three (3) visual building masses. Homes larger than 5,000 square feet, excluding garages, shall be composed of at least four (4) visual masses as viewed from any elevation. To be classified as a visual building mass, the mass shall have a minimum depth and width of 20 feet, be a minimum of 500 square feet in area, and be offset by at least 2 feet horizontally and 3 feet vertically. Depth and width dimensions shall be measured perpendicular to each other.

Very large or dominating individual building masses, in particular those created by sloping roofs, are discouraged.

It is expected that all building elevations will not only take advantage of the view from within the residence, but will provide pleasant views from all surrounding areas. All side and rear elevations are expected to be articulated to break up the façade into smaller elements, as well as adding the richness of shade and shadow. Large, blank walls will not be allowed. Failure to provide adequate articulation and richness may be grounds for ejection of the design by the Committee.

Horizontal and vertical offsets are the devices used in massing the structure to achieve the appropriate residential scale. The stepping up or down of rooflines helps a building blend with the land. Horizontal offsets should be coordinated with the interior plan and the roof pitches of the design. Combined with architectural massing, good roof lines and offsets, a very interesting and individualized building form can result. These horizontal offsets can be accentuated with garages and patio walls.

In general, avoid the use of continuous, unaccented two-story facades. Without horizontal and vertical offsets or wall projections, an interesting, barracks-like look will result. The stepping up or down of rooflines helps a building blend with the land.

It is usually more effective visually and economically to have fewer, but larger offsets rather than a series of small jogs. A 2-foot jog is barely noticeable; 4 feet is better, 6 to 12 feet cast a significant shadow and have a definite visual impact. Horizontal offsets can also contribute to added privacy and wind protection of outdoor spaces, reducing the need for elements such as fences and wall extensions.

The articulation of massing can be heightened by projections such as decks. However, the deck must be an integral part of the building design, avoiding the "tacked-on" look.

3.2 ROOFS

Since roof scapes will form an important part of the visual environment, they must be carefully designed. All roofs should be pitched, with a six in twelve slope or greater. Mansard roofs are prohibited.

The Committee strongly recommends that sloping roofs be designed as sheltering and shading elements, normally with broad overhangs and strong shadow lines. Thin edges or thin fascias will be avoided. Sloped roof materials should be textural with very dark or deep color tones. Roof surfaces must be non-reflective and, in the opinion of the Committee, not visually objectionable from neighboring properties and roads.

The composition of roof forms should be carefully considered. No continuous ridge lines should exceed 35 feet. Changing ridge direction, offsets or major roof projections should be used to break ridge lines. To avoid a thin veneer look, 2-inch by 10-inch nominal wood minimum dimension fascia boards are required. Normal 2-inch roof rafters should not be exposed.

2007064 134ZD

The placement of the various pipes and vents that penetrate the rood should be considered. Combine them in the attic space and project through roof in a common enclosed stack when possible. Where practical, place stacks on the roof away from the side of greatest visibility. All roof vents are to be colored to match the dominant roofing material. Roof material shall be from the approved list only as listed in Appendix "B".

3.3 COLORS

It is the intent that structures within Mill Creek utilize natural materials such as wood and stone as much as possible, with limited amounts of painted surfaces. Weathering agents are encouraged on natural wood surfaces to accelerate weathering and avoid uneven coloration.

All exterior building colors shall have a light reflective value (LRV) of less than 36. This information is available from most paint manufacturers. A limited color palette has been recommended for residences in Mill Creek and is listed in Appendix "B". The colors were chosen to blend with the natural colors of the vegetation and mountains as seen from a distance. Subdued accent colors may be used, subject to approval by the Committee. Colors for exterior artwork, sculpture or any other special features visible from common areas should also be muted tones chosen to blend rather than contrast with the residence and its surroundings. The paint colors listed in Appendix "B" are those colors, which the Committee has pre-approved for residences within Mill Creek. Other colors that meet the criteria of this section may be approved by the Committee on a case-by-case basis.

3.4 REFLECTIVE FINISHES

No highly reflective finishes, except glass, which may not be mirrored or opaque, and door hardware, shall be used on an exterior surfaces including exterior artwork and sculpture.

3.5 MATERIALS – EXTERIOR SURFACES

Exterior surfaces must generally be of materials that harmonize with the natural landscape. Consistently applied, quality materials are preferred, such as heavy wood or timber elements, shingles or natural stone. Stucco may be used as part of a total design if relieved with heavy wood, timbers, or other elements. Small areas of materials applied inappropriately for decoration will not be approved.

In order to impart a sense of solid, substantial construction and to avoid a tacked-on, thin veneer look, material changes should terminate at a logical inside corner plan shape change or at a major wall opening. Changes at outside corners should be avoided. Exterior finish materials should be continued down to the finish grade, thereby eliminating unfinished foundation walls.

3.6 BUILDING PROJECTIONS

All projections from a building including, but not limited to, chimney caps, vents, gutters, scuppers, downspouts, utility boxes, porches, railings, and exterior stairways shall match the

color of the surface from which they project or be an appropriate accent color, unless otherwise approved by the Committee. All building projections must be contained within the Building Envelope.

3.7 SKYLIGHTS/INTERIOR LIGHTING

Shall be flat, low silhouette, and non-glare. Bubble-type, Plexiglas skylights are not permitted. Skylights will not be permitted in locations where light from the interior will be overly visible to neighbors or roads.

Interior fluorescent fixtures must be positioned so that the direct light source is not visible from the outdoors. Consideration must be given to the visibility of the light source form vantage points outside of the building.

3.8 EXTERIOR LIGHTING

The goal of Mill Creek is to maintain the Montana Big Sky with minimal visual impact, which extends to nighttime as well as daytime views. In order to preserve the general stillness with the nighttime darkness and the night sky, which tend to be obscured by excessive local lighting, the following guidelines for residential site lighting have been established.

Site lighting is defined as lighting mounted on the building, ground, trees or on site walls for the purpose of providing security, decorative accent or functional lighting to outdoor spaces. Building mounted lighting is defined as lighting built into or attached to buildings on walls, ceilings, eaves, soffits or fascias.

- (a) Site lighting must be directed downward onto vegetation or prominent site features and may not be used to light walls or building elements. Up lighting more than 45 degrees above the horizontal is prohibited and lighting aimed between zero and 45 degrees above horizontal must be directed toward the interior of the lot upon which it is located.
- (b) Building mounted lighting must be directed downward away from adjacent lots, streets and open spaces, and may not be used to light walls or building elements or decorative purposes.
- (c) All exterior lighting must provide for significant shielding to ensure that light sources and lamps are not visible from other properties, from roads or from off-site; no bare lamps will be permitted. Recessed lights in exterior soffits, eaves, or ceilings shall have the lamp recessed a minimum of 3" into the ceiling.
- Only incandescent lamps with a maximum wattage of 75 watts will be allowed for exterior lighting unless specific approval is received from the Committee. Low voltage lighting is recommended since these fixtures are typically small and can be easily concealed within the native vegetation. Colored lights will not be allowed for exterior lighting.

- (e) No lighting will be permitted in natural areas or outside the areas enclosed by patio or building walls. Site lighting must be confined to areas enclosed by walls or be in the immediate vicinity of the main entrance or outdoor living spaces of the residence.
- Lights on motion detectors for the purpose of security illumination are prohibited but may be allowed subject to specific approval of the Committee if the lights so activated do not illuminate adjacent properties. If allowed by the Committee, these lights will only be allowed to operate on a motion detector and stay lit for a maximum of five continuous minutes. Security lights of any type or location must still meet the requirements of shielding the light sources, and the light sources may not be visible from neighboring property. If problems with these lights occur, the Committee reserves the right to demand that the fixtures be disconnected. If allowed, care must be taken to avoid setting off the motion detector by the motion of vegetation and the movement of wildlife. Generally, the motion detector's range should be limited to the Building Envelope area. These lights will not be allowed to operate for the purpose of general illumination.

3.9 REFLECTIVE FINISHES

No highly reflective finishes, except glass, which may not be mirrored or opaque, and door hardware, shall be used on any exterior surfaces including exterior artwork and sculpture.

3.10 MATERIALS - EXTERIOR SURFACES

Exterior surfaces must generally be of materials that harmonize with the natural landscape. Consistently applied, quality materials are preferred such as heavy wood, log or timber elements, shingles or natural stone. Limited amounts of stucco may be used as part of a total design if relieved with heavy wood, logs or timbers, or other elements. Small areas of materials applied inappropriately for decoration will not be approved.

In order to impart a sense of solid, substantial construction and to avoid a tacked-on, thin veneer look, material changes should terminate at a logical inside corner plan shape change or at a major wall opening. Changes at outside corners should be avoided. Exterior finish materials should be continued down to the finish grade, thereby eliminating unfinished foundation walls.

3.11 ANTENNA/SATELLITE DISHES

There shall be no antennae or satellite dishes of any sort installed or maintained, which are visible from neighboring property or from the roads except as expressly permitted by the Committee.

3.12 WINDOWS

Windows should be carefully located and detailed to add substantialness to the residence. The plane of the glass should be recessed from the exterior wall face, with suitable solid trim. Trimless metal windows at the fact of the wall will not be permitted.

All exposed aluminum sash and framing shall be an approved anodized color or vinyl coated. Exposed mill finish aluminum, including window screens, is not permitted. Metal finishes on solariums and greenhouses are included in this category.

3.13 SOLAR APPLICATIONS

Passive solar applications or the orientation and design of the residence for maximum winter sun gain will reduce the winter heating needs, and will be encouraged. Active solar collectors can cause excessive glare and reflection, and can only be approved if they are integrated into the structures or landscaping. As with all design elements of a residence or Improvements, solar collectors must be integrally designed, aesthetically pleasing and meet all other applicable restrictions set forth in these Guidelines. Solar collectors must meet the requirements of skylights.

3.14 FENCES, SITE WALLS, AND HEDGES

Not all lots will be approved for fences, site walls, or hedges because of site considerations and view blockage. Fences, site walls or hedges that are approved may be used to define property lines or to provide privacy. All fences shall be constructed of red cedar in accordance with the standard detail approved by the Committee. Fences shall have a maximum height of 5'-0" and shall be stained with a clear wood stain in colors compatible with colors used on the residence. All hedges that are approved must be trimmed at no more than 5'-0".

Screen walls should be a visual extension of the architectural design of the residence. They may be used to separate the private areas from the rest of the Building Envelope. They may not be used to delineate property lines or delineate the Building Envelope. Masonry site walls are preferred. The color of these walls must conform to the color standards described in these Guidelines. Both fences and site walls will be approved at the sole discretion of the Design Review Committee.

3.15 GARAGES

Every effort should be made to minimize the impact of the garage and garage door(s). Careful siting and driveway orientation can ensure that the visibility of the garage is minimized from the street and adjacent lots. Garages should normally be set back and oriented away from the street if possible. In an effort to minimize garage impact, no more than three garage stalls will be allowed adjacent to each other. All garage doors shall be single-bay (max 9' x 8' or 10 feet wide by 9 feet tall) type.

The appearance of the garage door must blend with the home design. The garage doors ofter an opportunity to enrich the texture, rhythm and overall composition of the design and the Design Review Committee expects that each home will capitalize on this opportunity. Flush panel doors are prohibited.

SECTION 4 REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS

In order to assist Owners in taking full advantage of the unique opportunities of their lots in the planning and design of their residence, a comprehensive design review process administered by the Design Review Committee has been established. This process provides an opportunity for the Owner to draw upon expertise and knowledge, which has been acquired during the planning and development of Mill Creek. Under the Declaration, the Design Review Committee (herein after "Committee") is charged with the responsibility of maintaining the standards set forth in Mill Creek Design Guidelines (herein after "Guidelines").

In its ongoing attempt to achieve the highest possible quality at Mill Creek, the Design Review Committee may modify or create additional guidelines, policies or procedures. In exercising its discretionary powers, the Committee may also moderate its interpretations of various portions of the guidelines as it gains experience with their application. IT IS IMPERATIVE THAT EACH OWNER AND PROPOSED DESIGNER MEET WITH A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE PRIOR TO COMMENCING THE PROCESS. Please contact the Committee for an appointment and to receive the latest amendments to the Guidelines or current policies prior to proceeding with design.

In general, the design review process is divided into five phases:

- 1) Meeting
- 2) Preliminary Submittal
- 3) Final Submittal
- 4) Construction Approval
- 5) Final Construction Review

It is strongly recommended that an Owner retain competent professional services for planning and design. A thorough analysis and understanding of the Owner's special needs and the skill to translate this into building form, as well as the ability to convey to the Committee the concept and design of a proposed residence or other improvements, are all important elements of the design review process. If an Owner elects to do his own design or to retain services from individuals unknown to or not pre-qualified by the Design Review Committee, and the result in either case is not approved by the Committee, the Committee has the right to require that an Owner thereafter utilize professional design services that have been qualified by the Design Review Committee (DRC). The DRC maintains a list of those designers and builders who are known to them to have demonstrated an ability to work successfully in this environment achieving the goals of high quality and minimum visual impact.

The design review process was developed to provide adequate checkpoints along the way, in an effort to minimize time and money spent on designs, which do not adhere to the Mill Creek Design Guidelines, or to the overall philosophy of Mill Creek. An attempt has been made to streamline this process to eliminate excessive time delays. Nevertheless, each Owner is directly responsible for complying with Mill Creek Design Guidelines, and all other applicable provisions of the Declaration, as well as all rules and regulations of any governmental authority, in order to bring the design review process to a speedy and satisfactory conclusion.

The Committee will conduct reviews of projects during their regular meetings or at such other times as it deems appropriate. Owners, architects, or builders shall have no right to attend any meeting of the Committee unless specifically requested to do so by the Committee. The Committee will respond in writing to the applicant no later than thirty (30) days after a submittal has been reviewed by the Committee. Results of reviews will not officially be discussed over the telephone with an Owner or his architect or builder. All official actions, responses and communication from the Committee, any of its members, or the Design Review Coordinator, will be conveyed in writing. Any responses an Owner may wish to make in reference to issues contained in the Committee's notice following review of submittals should be addressed to the Committee in writing. The Committee may avail itself of other technical and professional advice and consultants as it deems appropriate, and the Committee may delegate its plan review responsibilities, except final review and approval, to one or more of its members or to consultants retained by the Committee. Upon that delegation, the approval or disapproval of plans and specifications by such member or consultant will be equivalent to approval or disapproval by the entire Committee.

Except as provided in this Section below, all expenses of the Committee will be paid by the Mill Creek Association and will constitute a Common Expense. The Committee will have the right to charge a fee for each application submitted to it for review, in an amount which may be established by the Committee from time to time, and such fees will be collected by the Committee and remitted to the Mill Creek Association to help defray the expenses of the Committee's operation. In addition, the Mill Creek Association may engage outside consultants and other professionals to review submissions, the cost of which shall be borne by the person or entity making the submission or request. The Committee will review, study and either approve or reject proposed Improvements on the Property, all in compliance with this Declaration and as further set forth in the Design Guidelines and such rules and regulations as the Committee may establish from time to time to govern its proceedings. No Improvement will be erected, placed, reconstructed, replaced, repaired or otherwise altered, nor will any construction, repair or reconstruction be commenced until plans for the Improvements shall have been approved by the Committee: provided, however, that Improvements that are completely within a Building may be undertaken without such approval. All Improvements will be constructed only in accordance with approved plans.

Preliminary Submittals and Building Envelope Submittals must be made a minimum of seventeen (17) calendar days prior to the review meeting at which they will be discussed. Final Submittals, and any revised submittals must be made a minimum of eight (8) calendar days prior to the review meeting at which they will be discussed. Dates of scheduled Committee meetings are available from the Committee Chairman.

Although the Committee will enforce all provisions of the Guidelines, the following will be of particular concern:

(a) Siting of the residence and outbuilding within the Building Envelope to be sensitive to views and privacy from other lots or open spaces.

- (b) Architectural character as viewed from all sides and specifically from the golf course, streets and common areas. The massing, texture and materials of the design are critical.
- (c) Building heights and masses as per these Guidelines.
- (d) Finished floor levels and grading showing existing site elevations.
- (e) Exterior elevations of the residence, including a high level of aesthetic quality and the use of consistent, substantial materials.
- (f) Setbacks along the boundary adjacent to the golf course, to maintain visual and safety separation,
- (g) Exterior point and natural material colors, as well as color usage and distribution.
- (h) Landscape character and plant materials appropriate to the community.

4.1 PRE-DESIGN MEETING

To initiate the review and approval process prior to preparing any drawings for a proposed residence or improvement, it is a requirement that the Owner and his architect meet with Design Review Coordinator to discuss the proposed residence and to explore and resolve any questions regarding building requirements in Mill Creek or the interpretation of Mill Creek Design Guidelines. Any amendments to these Guidelines, as well as the current policies and procedures, may be obtained at this time.

This informal review is to offer guidance prior to the initiation of preliminary design. An appointment for the pre-design meeting should be made at least one week in advance.

Pre-design meetings are mandatory and preliminary submittals will not be accepted without a pre-design meeting.

4.2 THE PRELIMINARY SUBMITTAL

Preliminary drawings, including all of the exhibits outlined below, must be submitted to the Committee after the pre-design meeting. Preliminary submittals must be submitted seventeen (17) calendar days in advance of a regularly scheduled meeting at which they will be discussed.

Preliminary submittals shall include:

- (a) The Application Form, supplied by the Committee, with all information completed.
- (b) A Site Plan, showing the graphic locations of the building envelope, the residence and all other buildings or major structures, driveway, centerline of adjacent streets, parking areas, patios, pools, walls, site grading including existing and proposed contours and

topographic features, and elevations (datum) of all building floors, patios, and terraces, shown in relation to site contour elevations.

- (c) Landscape plans must be submitted no less than 90 days prior to home completion.
- (d) Roof Plans and Floor Plans (at a scale of no less than 1/8" = 1'-0"). Roof Plans should show areas and heights of flat and sloped roofs, location of crickets, and locations and heights of any roof mounted equipment and skylights. Floor plans shall show vertical elevations for each floor level change.
- (e) Exterior Elevations of all sides of the residence, at the same scale as the floor plans, identifying all structure heights, delineating both existing and proposed grade lines and designating all exterior materials and general colors. Color selections may be general and not specific for the preliminary submittal.

The Preliminary Submittal shall include one (1) 8 ½" x 11" paper PMT reduction of each of the required drawings in (b), (c) and (d) above as well as any other drawings, materials, or samples requested by the Committee or necessary to explain the design.

A non-refundable Design Review Fee of \$350, for either a new home or for an addition to an existing home, must accompany the submittal. Checks should be made out to The Mill Creek Homeowners Association, Inc.

All accessory improvements contemplated on the lot must be shown on the Preliminary Submittal.

To assist the Committee in its evaluation of the preliminary submittal, the Owner shall, if required, provide preliminary staking of the locations of the corners of the residence or major improvements deemed by the Committee to be major and of such other locations as the Committee may request.

4.3 NOTICE OF PRELIMINARY SUBMITTAL

Owners wishing to review a submittal are required to set up an appointment with the Design Review Coordinator, or designee. Personal appointments with Association or Committee staff must be scheduled a minimum of two (2) workdays in advance and are subject to time availability. Personal reviews are provided only as a courtesy. No drawings, photos, or information will be mailed, faxed or delivered to interested parties. Comments must be submitted in writing two (2) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting dates stated on the notice. Owners or interested parties are not allowed to attend the Committee meeting unless specifically requested by the Committee.

4.4 PRELIMINARY REVIEW

After the posting and comment period and any staking of the lot, the Preliminary Submittal will be deemed complete. The Committee will then review the submittal for conformance to Mill Creek Design Guidelines and will provide a written response to the applicant. The Committee will exercise its best judgment to see that all Improvements conform and harmonize with any existing structures as to external design, quality and type of construction, seals, materials, color, location on the Building Site, height, grade and finished ground elevation, and the schemes and aesthetic considerations set forth in the Design Guidelines and the other Mill Creek Documents. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may excuse compliance with such requirements as are not necessary or appropriate in specific situations and may permit compliance with different or alternative requirements.

4.5 FINAL SUBMITTAL

After preliminary approval is obtained the following documents, which clearly comply with, or satisfactorily resolve, the stipulations for preliminary approval, are to be submitted to the Committee for final approval. Final submittals must be made a minimum of eight (8) calendar days prior to a regularly scheduled meeting at which they will be discussed with a representative.

Final submittals shall include:

- (a) The application form, supplied by the Committee, with all information completed.
- (b) Complete construction documents for the residence including: all data noted in Section 4.3 paragraphs (b), (c), (e) and (f) building sections as required to illustrate the residence and improvements; all utility locations, electric meter, transformer and exterior mechanical equipment locations; height of the top of all skylights shown on the roof plan locations and manufacturer's catalog cuts of all exterior lighting fixtures.
- (c) Samples of all exterior materials and colors, and window and glass specifications, mounted on an 8 ½" x 11" (maximum size) heavy stock cardboard identified with manufacturer's name, color, and/or number. Sample boards shall include Owner's, architect's and builder's name, as well as the lot and phase numbers. Samples of exterior materials such as stone should be submitted via the use of photographs that show color and coursing patterns.
- (d) A complete landscape plan at the same scale as the site plan, showing: proposed contours and grading, if finished grading is different from that on the final site plan; locations and sizes of all trees; a list of all proposed plants including both the common and the botanical plant name and the plant size at maturity.
- (e) An approximate milestone construction schedule indicating approximate milestone dates for: start of construction, completion of slab/foundations, completion of framing, completion of exterior wall surfaces, completion of roofing, completion of all construction, anticipated utility hook-up, completion of landscaping and anticipated occupancy.

4.6 FINAL SUBMITTAL APPROVAL

Upon receipt of the complete final submittal, the Committee will review the submittal for conformance to The Mill Creek Design Guidelines, and to any stipulations by the Committee from the preliminary submittal and will provide a written response to the applicant. If the final submittal is approved, the Committee will provide a Construction Authorization Certificate to be displayed on the rear of the construction sign at the site indicating final submittal approval. This certificate must remain posted during the duration of the construction process.

4.7 CONSTRUCTION APPROVAL

Obtaining plan check approval from the County if required is the responsibility of the Owner and/or builder. Construction shall be in accordance with the final submittal approved by the Design Review Committee.

4.8 ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION AND/OR EXTERIOR CHANGES

Any changes to the approved drawings before, during, or after the construction of an improvement must first be submitted for review to, and must be approved by, the Design Review Committee. Failure to do so shall result in the removal and reconstruction of nonconforming portions at the expenses of the owner.

4.9 RESUBMITTAL OF DRAWINGS

In the event of disapproval by the Design Review Committee, of either a Preliminary Submittal or a Final Submittal, any resubmission of drawings must follow the same procedure as the original submittal, except that resubmittals of a Preliminary Submittal must be made at least eight (8) calendar days in advance of a regularly scheduled meeting at which it will be discussed. The resubmission of a Preliminary Submittal will not be posted on the Owner's Lot, not will notification be mailed out.

4.10 COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION

Upon receipt of approval from the Committee, the Owner shall commence the construction pursuant to the approved final submittal within one (1) year from the date of approval. If the Owner fails to comply with this paragraph, any approval given shall be deemed revoked unless, upon the written request of the Owner made to the Committee prior to the expiration of the one-year period and upon a finding by the Committee that there has been no change in circumstances, the time for commencement is extended in writing by the Committee. The Owner shall, in any event, complete the construction of the foundation and all exterior surfaces (including the roof, exterior walls, windows, doors and all landscaping) of any Improvement on his lot within one (1) year after commencing construction except when such completion is impossible or would result in great hardship to the Owner due to strikes, fires, national emergencies, or natural calamities. If the Owner fails to comply with this paragraph, the Committee may notify the Association of such failure and the Association, at its option, may complete the exterior in accordance with the

approved drawings or remove the Improvement(s), and the Owner shall reimburse the Association for all expenses incurred in connection therewith, or the Committee may, after Notice and opportunity for hearing as provided in the Bylaws, the Mill Creek Association may impose a fine of not less than \$100.00 per day (or such other reasonable amount as the Mill Creek Association may set) to be charged against the Owner of the Lot until construction is resumed, or the Improvement is completed, as applicable, unless the Owner can prove to the satisfaction of the Board of Directors that such abandonment is for circumstances beyond the Owner's control. Such charges will be a Default Assessment and lien as provided in Sections 6.3 and 6.4.

4.11 WORK IN PROGRESS – OBSERVATION FOR DESIGN CONFORMANCE

The Committee may review all work in progress and give notice of non-compliance if found. The builder is required to inform the Committee in writing at least ten (10) days prior to the completion of rough framing so that a review for design conformance may be made prior to the completion of sheathing. A written note stating this requirement shall be shown by the architect on the floor plan or framing plan as part of the final submittal. Absence of such review and notification during the construction period does not constitute approval by the Design Review Committee of work in progress or of compliance with these Guidelines or the Declaration.

4.12 FINAL CONSTRUCTION REVIEW

- (a) Upon completion of any residence or other improvement for which final approval was given by the Design Review Committee, the Owner shall give written Notice of Completion to the Committee prior to occupancy by the Owner.
- (b) Within such reasonable time as the Committee may determine, but in no case exceeding 20 calendar days from receipt of a required written Notice of Completion, the Committee may review the residence and/or improvements. If it is found that work was not done in strict compliance with the approved Final submittal, the Committee shall notify the Owner in writing of such non-compliance within 30 calendar days of its receipt of the Owner's Notice of Completion, specifying in reasonable detail the particulars of non-compliance, and shall require the Owner to remedy the same.
- (c) If the Owner has failed to remedy any non-compliance within 30 calendar days from the date of the Committee's notice, the Committee shall notify the Owner, and may take such action to remove the non-complying improvements as is permitted in these Guidelines or the Declaration including, without limitation, injunctive relief or the imposition of a fine.
- (d) The Mill Creek Association, upon request of the Committee and after reasonable notice to the offender and, if different, to the Owner, may enter upon any Lot at any reasonable time after notice to the Owner, without being deemed guilty of trespass, and remove any Improvement constructed, reconstructed, refinished, altered, or maintained in violation of these Covenants. The Owner of the Improvement will immediately reimburse the Mill Creek Association for all expenses incurred in connection with such removal. If the

Owner fails to reimburse the Mill Creek Association within 30 days after the Mill Creek Association gives the Owner notice of the expenses, the sum owed to the Mill Creek Association will bear interest at the Default Rate from the date the expense was incurred by the Mill Creek Association through the date of reimbursement in full, and all such sums and interest will be a Default Assessment enforceable as provided in this Declaration.

- (e) If, after receipt of written Notice of Completion from the Owner, the Committee fails to notify the Owner of any failure to comply within the provided period following the Committee's review, the Improvements shall be deemed to be in accordance with the approved final submittal.
- (f) If an Owner chooses to occupy the residence following receipt of a Certificate of Occupancy from the City, but prior to final construction review by the Committee, he may do so provided that the work is continued and the written Notice of Completion is given to the Committee within 45 days of occupancy. If improvements are not completed within 45 days of occupancy, the Committee reserves the right to take such action to cause the completion of the improvements as is permitted in these Guidelines or the Declaration including, without limitation, the imposition of fines.

4.13 NON-WAIVER

The approval by the Design Review Committee of any drawings or specifications for any work done or proposed, or in connection with any other matter requiring such approval under these Guidelines or the Declaration, including a waiver by the Committee, shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of any right to withhold approval as to any similar drawing, specification, or matter whenever subsequently or additionally submitted for approval or of a nonconforming design or aspect that has not been identified earlier. For example, the Committee may disapprove an item not in conformance with the Guidelines shown on the final submittal even though it may have been evident and could have been disapproved at the preliminary submittal.

4.14 RIGHT OF WAIVER

The Design Review Committee reserves the right to waive or vary any of the procedures or standards set forth herein at its discretion, for good cause shown.

4.15 ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

Within thirty (30) days after written demand therefore is delivered to the Committee by any Owner, and upon payment therewith to the Committee of a reasonable fee from time to time to be fixed by it, the Design Review Committee shall record an estoppel certificate executed by any two of its members, certifying with respect to any lot of said Owner, that as of the date thereof either (a) all improvements and other work made or done upon or within said lot by the Owner, or otherwise, comply with these Guidelines, and the Declaration, or (b) such improvements and/or work do not so comply, in which event the certificate shall also (1) identify the non-complying improvements and/or work and (2) set forth with particularity the cause or causes for

such non-compliance. Any purchaser from the Owner or mortgagee or other encumbrancer shall be entitled to rely on said certificate with respect to the matters therein set forth, such matters being conclusive as between the Association, the Design Review Committee, developer, all Owners and other interested persons, and such purchaser mortgagee, or other encumbrancer.

SECTION 5 CONSTRUCTION GUIDELINES

In order to assure that the common area landscape of Mill Creek is not unduly damaged during construction, the following Construction Regulation must be made a part of the construction contract documents for each residence or other Improvement. All builders and Owners shall be bound by these regulations and any violation by a builder or his subcontractors or suppliers or vendors shall be deemed to be a violation by the Owner of the lot.

The Committee has determined that policing of building sites during construction will be done by Committee Members, the Design Review Coordinator, the Association Manager and the project security guards, acting as roving inspectors on their regular rounds. Violations to the construction regulations will be reported to the Association Manager who will send a letter to the builder involved. Copies of the letter will be sent to the lot Owner, Mill Creek Director of Security and the Design Review Coordinator.

5.1 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

Prior to commencing construction, the builder must meet with the Design Review Coordinator to review the construction regulations, procedures and guidelines of this section. Builders will be required to fill out a form listing subcontractors and suppliers for access to the project.

A "Construction Authorization Certificate" issued by the Design Review Coordinator or Association Manager, will be required to be posted at each construction site. The certificate should be posted on the back of the construction sign if it exists, or on a small fixed post located near the driveway at the street. In order to receive the Construction Authorization Certificate, the final submittal must be approved and the construction documents received and reviewed for compliance with the Committee's stipulations for final approval. In addition, the builder's bond must be collected and the acknowledgment of receipt of the construction regulations must be signed. No construction activity of any kind can take place until this Construction Authorization Certificate is received and posted.

5.2 BUILDER'S BOND

To assist the Committee in assuring compliance with these Regulations, each builder (not the Owner), before beginning any construction, shall post a cash bond in the amount of \$5,000 with the Association. Should it become necessary for either the Design Review Committee or the Association to remedy any violation of these regulations, the costs of such remedy can be charged against the bond.

The builder's bond will be refunded upon receipt of the Notice of Completion by the Owner and upon satisfactory completion of all requirements of the Final Construction Review.

5.3 OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT COMPLIANCE (OSHA)

All applicable OSHA regulations and guidelines must be strictly observed at all times.

5.4 CONSTRUCTION TRAILERS, PORTABLE FIELD OFFICES, ETC.

Any Owner or builder who desires to bring a construction trailer, field office, or the like to Mill Creek shall first apply for and obtain written approval from the Committee. To obtain such approval, the Owner or builder shall submit a copy of the site plan with proposed locations of the construction trailer or field office, the portable toilet, and the trash receptacle noted thereon. Such temporary structures shall be removed upon completion of construction. No signage shall be allowed on any construction trailers and the color of any construction trailer or field office shall comply with Section 3.6 of these Guidelines. The construction trailer, if any, portable toilet, construction material storage and dumpsters must all be contained within the chain link fence and within the Building Envelope.

In an effort to protect the fragile existing conditions at Mill Creek, a six-foot chain link fence will be required to completely enclose the building envelope. The fence shall have a single entrance located at the driveway entrance and shall be maintained intact until the completion of construction. All related construction equipment, including trailer, portable toilet, and dumpster shall be sited within the fence. In addition, tree protection as specified in the American Nursery Standards may be required to protect all trees and plants not to be removed on the site.

5.5 DEBRIS AND TRASH REMOVAL

Builders shall clean up all trash and debris on the construction site at the end of each day. Trash and debris shall be removed from each construction site frequently and not be permitted to accumulate. Lightweight material, packaging, and other items shall be covered or weighted down to prevent their being blown off the construction site. In no case may debris and trash be allowed to exceed the top of the dumpster. The Committee reserves the right to apply fines to builders and Owners who fail to control debris from blowing or being disposed of on other lots or common areas. Builders are prohibited from dumping, burying, or burning trash anywhere on Mill Creek except as expressly permitted by the Committee. During the construction period, each construction site shall be kept neat and clean, and shall be properly policed to prevent it from becoming a public eyesore or affecting other lots or any open space. Unsightly dirt, mud, or debris resulting from activity on each construction site shall be promptly removed and the general area cleaned up.

Dumpsters or other waste receptacles must be located within the Building Envelope and within the fenced construction site or in areas specifically approved in writing by the Committee. For physically constrained sites, smaller dumpsters with more frequent removal may be necessary in order to fit the dumpster within the construction fencing.

5.6 WASHOUT AND CLEANING

Washout of concrete trucks or the washout and cleaning of any equipment by masons, plasterers, painters, drywallers, etc. must be contained within the Building Envelope of each lot. Washout or cleaning residue shall not be allowed to flow out of the Building Envelope. Fines will be imposed against a builder and/or its builder's bond for any violations to this provision. The builder will also be responsible for restoring any damaged area to its natural state.

5.7 SANITARY FACILITIES

Each builder shall be responsible for providing and maintaining adequate sanitary facilities for his construction workers. Portable toilets or similar temporary toilet facilities shall be located only within the Building Envelope and within the fenced construction site or in areas specifically approved in writing by the Committee.

5.8 VEHICLES AND PARKING AREAS

Construction crews shall not park on, or otherwise use, other lots or any open space. Private and construction vehicles and machinery shall be parked only within the Building Envelope and the fenced construction site or in areas designated by the Committee. All vehicles shall be parked so as not to inhibit traffic on adjacent streets or damage the road shoulder vegetation.

Each Builder shall be responsible for its subcontractors and suppliers obeying the speed limits posted within Mill Creek. Fines may be imposed against the builder and/or its builder's bond for repeated violations. Adhering to the speed limits shall be a condition included in the contract between the builder and its subcontractors/suppliers.

5.9 EXCAVATION MATERIALS

Excess Excavation materials must be hauled away from Mill Creek and disposed of properly. Dumping of excess excavation materials within Mill Creek is prohibited, unless approved in writing, for clean fill in approved locations.

5.10 RESTORATION OR REPAIRS OF OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGE

Damage and scarring to property other than the lot, including, but not limited to, open space, other lots, roads, driveways, concrete curbs and gutter, and/or other Improvements, resulting from construction operations will not be permitted. If any such damage occurs, it must be repaired and/or restored, promptly at the expense of the Builder and/or Owner.

5.11 MISCELLANEOUS AND GENERAL PRACTICES

All Owners will be absolutely responsible for the conduct and behavior of their agents, representatives, Builders, contractors, and subcontractors while on the premises of Mill Creek. The following practices are prohibited:

- (a) Changing oil or otherwise servicing any vehicle or equipment on the site itself or of any other location within Mill Creek, other than at a location designated for that purpose by the Committee.
- (b) Allowing concrete suppliers, plasterers, painters, or any other subcontractors to clean their equipment other than at locations specifically designated for that purpose by the Committee. Residue from cleaning on the lot is not allowed to flow out of the Building Envelope, or in any way enter into drainage ways or common areas.
- (c) Removing any rocks, plant material, topsoil, or similar items from any property of others within Mill Creek, including other construction sites.
- (d) Carrying any type of firearms within Mill Creek.
- (e) Using disposal methods or equipment or units other than those approved by Committee.
- (f) Careless handling of flammable material. Smoking is not permitted on construction sites within Mill Creek.
- (g) Use of, or transit over, any common area paths, trails, or ponds.
- (h) No pets, particularly dogs, may be brought into Mill Creek by construction personnel. In the event of any violation hereof, the Committee, the Association, or Developer shall have the right to contact the county authorities to impound the pets, to refuse to permit the builder or subcontractor involved to continue work on the project, or to take such other action as may be permitted by law, these Guidelines or the Declaration.
- (i) Radios and other audio equipment playing music audible from the construction site within Mill Creek are prohibited. This restriction is to avoid impacting golfers as well as homeowners living at Mill Creek.
- (j) Catering trucks will not be permitted to use their horns; their schedules are routine enough for workers to be aware of break times. Also, trash generated by the purchase of items from these trucks and from construction shall be disposed of properly. Repeated problems with these requirements could result in the catering trucks being denied admittance to the property.
- (k) Fires, for warming in winter or any reason.
- (l) Storage or parking of non-construction related vehicles, trailers, boats, etc. at the construction site.

5.12 CONSTRUCTION ACCESS

The only approved construction access to a lot during construction will be over the approved driveway location unless the Committee approves an alternative access point. In no event shall more than one construction access be permitted onto any lot.

5.13 DUST AND NOISE

The builder shall be responsible for controlling dust and noise, including without limitation music, from the construction site.

5.14 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION SIGNAGE

In an effort to maintain the residential character of Mill Creek and to minimize the visual clutter that unlimited construction signage can cause, the Committee will require all temporary construction signs to meet the following criteria:

- (a) Signs, if any, shall be single-faced, panel type, with a maximum area of 6 square feet. No additional signs may be attached to the main sign or be suspended below it, although separate sign panels that link together to form a single visual sign that meets all the requirements of this section will be acceptable. No lighting of construction signage is allowed.
- (b) Only the following information may appear on a construction sign: builder's name and phone number, architect's name and phone number, and Owner's name. The two phone numbers noted above are the maximum phone numbers allowed on the sign.
- (c) Information such as "For Sale", "Available" or similar language, or descriptive phrases such as "3-bedroom" may not appear on any construction sign.
- (d) Colors of sign backgrounds should be muted earth tones which harmonize with the natural colors rather than sharply contrast with them. Letter colors should relate harmoniously with the background colors while providing sufficient contrast to enable the sign to be read from approximately 20 feet away.
- (e) Temporary construction signs must be removed at the time the house is substantially complete or when the Committee directs the sign to be removed.

5.15 DAILY OPERATION

Daily working hours for each construction site shall be from 30 minutes before sunrise to 30 minutes after sunset unless other hours are designated in writing by the Committee. No exterior construction or construction causing noise audible from outside the residence shall be allowed on Sundays.